

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 27th Sep 2017 - Page 1 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Student Expulsions 1-17-18 and 2-17-18 Information for a vote in Open Session 


 


2.2. Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code 
54956.8) 


Address: 255 Swift St., Santa Cruz, CA                              
Agency Negotiator: Mr. Gaffney                                    
Negotiating Parties: Gateway School                                                                                  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Agreements 


Address: 133 Mission St., Santa Cruz, CA                        
Agency Negotiator:  Mr. Gaffney                                                
Purpose: Update and Board Direction 


2.3. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.4. Certificated/Classified/Management 
Leaves, Retirements, Resignations & 
Appointments 


Information for possible action 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


1 of 166







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 27th Sep 2017 - Page 2 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's and Student 
Representatives' Reports 


 


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Student Representatives' Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Approval of the Minutes of September 13, 
2017 


 


7.2. Approval of the Minutes of the Special 
Meeting Inter District Transfer Appeal 
Hearing Sept. 19 2017 


 


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  


2 of 166







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 27th Sep 2017 - Page 3 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


8.1.6. Gifts  


8.1.7. Contracts & Agreements  


8.1.7.1. Education Services: Agreements  


8.1.7.1.1. Education Services: Small Schools: 
Consultant Service Agreement-UCSC CA 
Writing Project 


 


8.1.7.1.2. Education Services: Harbor HS: Consultant 
Service Agreement-Organized Binder 


 


8.1.7.1.3. Agreement: Special Education: Maria 
Ballard-Revised Agreement for 
Professional Services-PT 


 


8.1.7.2. Business Services: Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.1.7.2.1. Wasinger Building Inspection Services: 
Soquel HS Marquee 


 


8.1.7.2.2. Wenger & Associates: Agreement for ASB, 
Booster Club Guidance 


 


8.1.7.2.3. Transportation: Lease/Rental Agreement: 
A-Z Buses 


 


8.1.7.2.4. Agreement: No. American Technical 
Services In-Plant Inspection of Portable 


 


8.1.7.2.5. Response & or Patrol Agreement: Bay 
Alarm - Monitoring the Natural Bridges 
campus 


In response to concerns raised by the community regarding 
trespassers on the Natural Bridges campus, the proposed 
agreement will provide four hours of evening security patrols 
at the campus. 


8.1.7.2.6. Contract: School Services-Food Services  


8.1.8. Change Order  


   


3 of 166







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 27th Sep 2017 - Page 4 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.2.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


8.2.2. Vote on Expulsions  


8.2.2.1. Vote on Expulsion 01-17-18  


8.2.2.2. Vote on Expulsion 02-17-18  


   


8.3. Items to Be Transacted and/or 
Discussed 


 


8.3.1. PUBLIC HEARING: New Personnel 
Commissioner 


With the resignation of James Spano on June 6, 2017, a 
vacancy for the Board appointed member was created. 


8.3.2. New Business: Approve New Personnel 
Commissioner 


Recommendation: Appoint Pam Hernandez as the Board 
appointed member of the Personnel Commission. 


8.3.3. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability 
Plan (LCAP): Local Indicators 


Staff will report on local control accountability indicators in 
state priority areas. 


8.3.4. Staff Report: Assessment & Progress 
Monitoring Tools 


As part of the SCCS Response to Intervention framework 
we have universal screeners for both math and English. A 
universal screener is an assessment given to all students for 
the purpose of providing an objective check or measure of 
each student’s level of learning.   


8.3.5. Staff Report: Bond Projects Update Staff will present an update on the status of current A & B 
Measures Bond Projects. 


8.3.6. New Business: SCCS Sunshine Proposal 
to GSCFT K-12 & Guest Teacher Units 


Recommendation: Approve the SCCS Sunshine Proposal to 
GSCFT K-12 & Guest Teacher Units. 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


4 of 166







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 27th Sep 2017 - Page 5 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


12. Adjournment  


 
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
 
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 


Board Meeting Information 
1. The Special Meeting for Board Member Candidate Interviews on October 11, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will 


be held in the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
2. The Regular Meeting on October 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 


Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
3. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Student Discipline on November 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 


be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
4. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 


Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
5. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., 


will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
6. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 


Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
7. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 


Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
8. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 


2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 


5 of 166



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html





SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 27th Sep 2017 - Page 6 of 6 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


18. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 


6 of 166







 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


September 13, 2017 
 
 
 
Convene Open Session (Closed Session Item 2.2 Moved to Open Session at the request of Employee) 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order @ 5:31 p.m.  Per employee request, 
Closed Session Item 2.2 Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. Code Section 54957) 
was moved to Open Session for discussion.    
 
Convene Special Open Session for one Item 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Special Open Session to order at 5:32 p.m. in the Santa Cruz County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance: 
Jeremy Shonick Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Item Moved to Open Session 
None 
 
Closed Session Item 2.2 Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. Code Section 
54957) 
Ms. Parks reported that the action brought forward tonight is a dismissal action against employee #2395.  The 
Board has copies of the charges and letter sent to the employee.  The employee was served with dismissal 
charges and requested that the Board hear the charges in open session.  If the Board takes action to dismiss, 
the employee will have a right to appeal that decision to the Personnel Commission.  The charges against the 
employee are as follows: 


 Employee has failed to report to work since employee was scheduled to return on August 1, 2017.  This 


constitutes: 


o absence without leave 


o insubordination 


o willful conduct tending to injure the public service. 


As a result, we are recommending the dismissal of employee 2395. 
 
Board Questions: None 
Public Comments: None 
MSP (Vestal/Threet) 4-0, the Board of Education upheld the dismissal of employee #2395.   
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Closed Session to order at 5:36 p.m. in the Santa 
Cruz County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
 


7 of 166







 


 


Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:36 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Student Representative Werlin-Martinez, Santa Cruz High School 
Student Representative Alternate Barre, Harbor High School  
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
None 
 
Introduction of 2017-18 Student Board Representatives 
Mr. Wells introduced the 2017-18 Student Board Representatives: Daniela Werlin-Martinez from Santa Cruz 
High School and Harbor High School student Alli Bare, who is attending the meeting tonight as an alternate for 
Harbor High School Student Representative Genesis Smith. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 


 
 


SUPERINTENDENT’S AND STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS 
Superintendent’s Report 
The Superintendent welcomed 2017-18 student representatives Daniela Werlin-Martinez and Genesis Smith 
to the Board of Education.  Student perspectives and input are important to us and we look forward to your 
reports.  The Superintendent acknowledged our school administrators and staff members for preparing great 
back to school nights to share information about the instructional and co-curricular programs with parents.  
Thank you to the Trustees who were able to attend and support these important events.   Today, 


representatives from Landed, Superintendent Munro and other representative county Superintendents met 


with potential investors for a Santa Cruz County Landed fund to support the ten districts and county office 


educators and support staff with a program that would provide down payment assistance when buying homes 


8 of 166







 


 


in SC County.   This is a part of our effort to provide housing support to our employees.  We will bring forward 


more information soon on potential opportunities.  This week an email went out to secondary parents to 


support sign-ups for the new parent portal in Illuminate.  The IT team is hard at work to get individual email or 


mailings out to families with their individualized codes to access the portal.  Superintendent Munro was 


pleased to have an opportunity to sit down with new Santa Cruz Police Chief Mills, who is working hard to be 


visible in our community.  The Superintendent congratulated the following teachers for their Schools Plus 


Grant Awards: Kathy Mitchell, Bay View Elementary; Katy Scocroft, Marya Alvarez, & Alishia Robertson – Gault 


Elementary; Sallie Corbin, Charity Maramonte, Katherine Garkey & Martha Dyer – Mission Hill Middle; Gail 


Alaimo and Laura Beach – Soquel High.  The annual Schools Plus grantee celebration and fundraiser will be 


held Saturday, September 30, 3:00 p.m., at the Community Foundation.  RSVPs are requested.  Please let 


Claudia or me know if you would like to attend. 


 
Student Representatives’ Reports 
Student Werlin-Martinez, a grade 12 student at Santa Cruz High School, reported that Fun Fridays are off to a 
great start.  Student Leadership opportunities have been created at Santa Cruz High School, and the 
Leadership Class will meet to determine the process for the election of Grade 9 representatives.  School is 
definitely under way! 
 
Harbor High School student Alli Bare reported that she is pleased to be present and will attend 2017-18 school 
board meetings if Student Representative Smith is not available.   


 
BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 


Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Perez-Granados welcomed the Student Representatives.  Dr. Perez-Granados attended the 
Santa Cruz High School Back to School Night.  It was impressive in terms of both teacher enthusiasm and 
thoughtful presentation of curriculum and ideology.  
 
Board Member Shonick spoke briefly about the need for district executive summaries in three areas: Local 
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP); Budget; Bond Expenditures.  An executive or management summary is a 
short document or section of a document that summarizes a subject area so that readers can become rapidly 
acquainted with a large body of material without having to read it all.  These three executive summaries can 
be disseminated to the general public and serve as quick reference guides that will help them to follow 
discussions and presentations at our school board meetings and at other related district events. 
 
Board Member Threet welcomed the Student Representatives and commented on how valuable the student 
perspective is to board members as they deliberate on district issues.  Trustee Threet congratulated the 
Harbor High School football team on their first win of the year.   
 
Board Member Vestal welcomed the Student Representatives and noted that she appreciates their presence.  
The Delta Charter High School parent meeting was well attended.  New and returning parents had lively 
conversations regarding field trips, fundraisers, student academics, etc.  Trustee Vestal attended the Delta 
Open House and her student guides shared personal journeys that led to enrollment at Delta – the students 
are very enthusiastic about the Delta programs and opportunities.  Ms. Vestal is looking forward to a 
wonderful community event at the Schools Plus Celebration and is hoping lots of folks are able to attend. 
 


9 of 166







 


 


Board Member Coonerty welcomed the Student Representatives.  Dr. Coonerty was at Santa Cruz High School 
for the Back to School Night event and also the Bay View Elementary Back to School Night.   The Bay View staff 
is very pleased to have Principal Garcia at their site and seem ready and eager for a great new year. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx reported that she had the pleasure of meeting Ms. Werlin-Martinez during the 
interview process for the selection of the Santa Cruz High School Student Representative, and the Board 
President welcomed the students this evening.  Board President Tracy-Proulx saw the DACA letter of support 
signed by all of the school district Superintendents in Santa Cruz County and thanked our county 
superintendents for their continued support of our students.  The Board President appreciated the Santa Cruz 
Park Safety Zone ordinance which ensures additional accountability of folks regarding their actions near school 
campuses.    
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Coonerty/Vestal) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on 


August 23, 2017,  
 


Consent Agenda 
Board Recording Secretary Lentz reported a revision to one of the documents contained in Item 8.1.6. Board 
Policies/Updates & Revisions.  GSCFT President Carlson suggested a slight change in the wording of paragraph 
4 on page 2 of the document – the deletion of the words “prior to the implementation of weekend classes”.  
The Superintendent agreed with the revision, and this policy is brought forward this evening to be included in 
the item for approval as revised.  Item 8.1.8. was previously pulled from the agenda and will return to the 
Board of Education on September 27, 2017.  Board Member Shonick asked to pull Item 8.1.6. Board Policies: 
Final Reading and Item 8.1.7. 4th Quarter Investment Report for separate discussions and votes.  Dr. Perez-
Granados moved approval of the remaining items on the Consent Agenda, consisting of: Item 8.1.1. Personnel 
Actions – Certificated; Item 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and 
Bids; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.5. Out-of-State Travel: Special Education Visitations and 
Assessment; Item 8.1.9.1. Board of Education/Superintendent’s Office: Consultant Service Agreement: Carolyn 
Post; Item 8.1.9.2. Human Resources: Consultant Service Agreement: Kathleen Elliott McCrae: Classified 
Professional Development; Item 8.1.9.3. Educational Services/Student Services: MOU-City of Santa 
Cruz/Commission to Prevent Violence against Women; Item 8.1.9.4. Educational Services/Special Education: 
Contract-Revision to Contract NPA May Institute; Item 8.1.9.5.1. Business Services: Agreement-ISI Software; 
Item 8.1.9.5.2. Business Services: Contract-Terra Nova for Branciforte MS rain catchment; Item 8.1.9.5.3. 
Business Services: Agreement Amendment-MADI Architects for Natural Bridges campus renovation; Item 
8.1.10. Disposition of Surplus Property.  Board Member Shonick seconded the motion.  The motion was passed 
by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
Student Representatives Barre and Werlin-Martinez abstained from making a recommendation on this matter.  
 
Item 8.1.6. Board Policies: Final Reading-Returning from August 23 for final approval 
Board Member Shonick had questions regarding Board Policy 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
and Board Policy 6111 School Calendar.  Superintendent Munro and Mr. Wells provided the requested 
information.  Dr. Coonerty had a comment regarding the LCAP Policy.  Dr. Perez-Granados had comments on 
Board Policy 6111 School Calendar and Board Policies 5111 Admission and 5111.1 District Residency.  Dr. 


10 of 166







 


 


Perez-Granados moved approval of Item 8.1.6. Board Policies Final Reading and Ms. Threet seconded the 
motion.   The motion was passed by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
Student Representatives Barre and Werlin-Martinez abstained making a recommendation on this matter.  
 
Item 8.1.7. 4th Quarter Investment Report 
Board Member Shonick had questions about the availability of options for fund investments.  Mr. Gaffney 
shared that the parameters for investing are very restrictive and offered to have a follow-up conversation with 
Mr. Shonick.  Mr. Shonick moved approval of Item 8.1.7. 4th Quarter Investment Report and Dr. Perez-
Granados seconded the motion.  The motion was passed by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
Student Representatives Barre and Werlin-Martinez abstained from making a recommendation on this matter.  
 
8.2 Closed Session Actions 


1. There were no additional items for Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957). 


2. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133 Mission 
Street in Santa Cruz, CA and the Board of Education provided direction on these matters. 


3. There were no items to be heard for Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 
Resignations & Appointments. 


4. The Board of Education heard information on a Special Education settlement agreement. 
The Board of Education will return to Closed Session at the conclusion of the Open Session this evening to 
discuss potential litigation. 
 


ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 
8.3.1. Staff Report: Summer Professional Development/Learning 


Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment Co-Directors Hodges and Robb, along with Mission Hill 
Middle School Teacher Vann and Branciforte Middle School Teacher Thompson reported to the Board 
of Education on the summer professional development and learning opportunities for Santa Cruz City 
Schools staff members.  The information detailed to describe the August 14th Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leaders (SCIL) Professional Development Day included: Collective Teacher Efficacy; Professional 
Learning Communities & the Cycle of Inquiry – 4 Critical Questions.  The new district trainings offered 
in August included: Measure of Academic Progress (MAP)/Children’s Progress Academic Assessment 
(CPAA) training; Trauma Informed Schools for Elementary Certificated; GLAD training at Gault; 
Certificated Secondary Professional Development by site; a day of professional development for nine-
month Classified Employees.  Other summer learning opportunities included School Climate and 
Culture Training for all site and district administrators; Silicon Valley Math Initiative training for all 
grade levels; Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) trainings; College Preparatory Mathematics 
(CPM) for high school Integrated Math 1 and Integrated Math 2 staff; CPM Phase 2 Training for 
teachers in year 2+ CPM implementation; new student information system Illuminate training for all 
teachers, administrators and classified staff members.  Following the presentation, the Trustees asked 
clarifying questions and made comments.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were 
taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter.  


 
 


11 of 166







 


 


8.3.2. New Business: Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws Revision – Final Reading & Approval 
Mr. Gaffney reported that this item is being returned for final approval.  Per Board direction, the 
Bylaws have been modified since the August 23, 2017 Board Meeting to simplify the language 
regarding parent representatives from the Elementary and High School Districts.  Superintendent 
Munro shared that District Administration will meet with the outgoing committee members to ensure 
they know that their continued input during the “public comments” section of upcoming meetings is 
valued and supported.  Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the bylaws as submitted this evening.  
MSP (Shonick/Vestal) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the revised PTOC bylaws.  Students Barre 
and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter.  
 


8.3.3. New Business: Resolution 03-17-18 GANN Limit 
Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of this annual resolutions which adopts the recalculated Gann 
Limit for fiscal year 2016-17 and the Gann Limit calculation for 2017-18.  The attached worksheet 
recalculates the prior year (2016-17) Gann Limit based on actual ADA and revenues, and calculates the 
current year 2017-18 Gann Limit based on projected ADA and budgeted revenues.  Dr. Perez-Granados 
moved approval of the resolution and Mr. Shonick seconded the motion.   The motion was passed by 
roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes   


   Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
Student Representatives Barre and Werlin-Martinez abstained from making a recommendation on this 
matter.  


 
8.3.4. Staff Report: Opening Enrollments 


Mr. Gaffney reported that the numbers shared this evening were the attendance “head count” as of 
September 6, the 10th day of the 2017-18 school year.  In preparation for this school year, the district 
used the “conservative” data from the demographer, and the outcomes appear to be very accurate.  
Final student numbers and fiscal impact will be determined on the official CBEDS day in October.   
Information provided included:   


 
Elementary Schools 45 over budget projection / 159 under 2016 CBEDS 
Middle Schools 4 under budget projection / 7 under 2016 CBEDS 
High Schools 51 over budget projection / 133 over 2016 CBEDS 
Small Schools 13 over budget projection / 8 over 2016 CBEDS 
Total 105 over budget projection / 25 under 2016 CBEDS 


 
Ms. Parks was pleased to share that while elementary classes are full, the sites are not overstaffed and 
she is currently working with secondary principals to ensure appropriate class sizes with the least 
amount of student schedule disruption.  There has been some relief in the overcrowding at both Bay 
View and DeLaveaga due to decreased enrollment in the elementary district.  This report was 
informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.3.5. New Business: Unaudited Actuals 


Mr. Gaffney reported that the 2016-17 Unaudited Actuals represent the final fiscal year-end report for 
2016-17. The General Fund was projected to end the fiscal year with an unrestricted ending balance of 
$9.4 million, and the unaudited actual ending balance is $10.1 million. This reflects a $631K increase in 
the Unrestricted Ending Balance and a $356K increase in the Restricted Ending Balance, a total increase 
of $986M.  Following Board questions, comments, discussion and public comments, Mr. Gaffney 


12 of 166







 


 


recommended that the Trustees accept the unaudited actuals to allow the Superintendent to sign the 
certification and send it to the County Office of Education.  MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 6-0, the 
Board of Education accepted the Unaudited Actuals 2016-17.  Students Barre and Werlin-Martinez 
abstained from a recommendation regarding this matter. 


 
8.3.6. New Business: 2017-18 GSCFT K-12 Unit Sunshine Proposal to SCCS 


Ms. Parks reported that the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers’, K-12 Unit and Guest Teachers 
contract proposals are being submitted for “sunshining” at the September 13, 2017 Board Meeting. 
This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for public notice of contract proposals before 
official negotiations may begin.  MSP (Coonerty/Threet) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the 
2017-18 GSCFT K-12 Unit Sunshine Proposal to SCCS.  Students Barre and Werlin-Martinez abstained 
from making a recommendation regarding this matter. 
 


8.3.7. New Business: Resolution 01-17-18 Regarding Board Vacancy and Provisional Appointment 
Superintendent Munro reported that a vacancy on the Board of Education was created on August 24, 
2017 when Trustee Alisun Thompson resigned from the Board.  Educational Code section 5091 
provides that when a vacancy occurs on the governing board in a school district, the governing board 
of the district shall, within sixty (60) days of the vacancy, either make a provisional appointment or 
order an election to fill the vacancy.  Upon approval of either the provisional appointment process or 
ordering an election, the Administration will commence to fill the vacancy. Information will be released 
to the public on Thursday, September 14, 2017.  Should the Board decide to move forward with an 
appointment, the District would implement the following timeline: 


 


 BOARD APPOINTMENT TIMELINE  


August 24, 2017 Board vacancy created Day 1 


September 13, 2017 Board announces provisional appointment process Day 20 


September 14, 2017 Media notified of vacancy; application packets available Day 21 


September 29, 2017 Application deadline Day 36 


October 4, 2017 Candidate Orientation with Superintendent Day 41 


October 11, 2017 Interview candidates at special Board meeting.  Board 


selects provisional appointee by majority vote and makes 


the provisional appointment. 


Day 48 


 
The Superintendent recommends the provisional appointment of a board member.  Following board 
and public comments, Ms. Vestal moved approval of Resolution 01-17-18 and Dr. Perez-Granados 
seconded the motion.   The motion was passed by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes   


   Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
Students Barre and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 


8.3.8. Information Item: Superintendent’s Goals 2017-18 
Superintendent Munro is committed to an open agenda and communication with Trustees, District 
Staff and the greater Santa Cruz school community as the district team works diligently to engage 
students’ hearts and minds - every student, every day.  In this report, the Superintendent shared 
details of objectives for the 2017-18 school year.  Superintendent Munro spoke to each of the six 
district goals – including information about what actions would be taken by district staff to address the 
goals and how success for students would be measured after implementation of these actions.  The 


13 of 166







 


 


Superintendent will provide an update to the Trustees and community in early 2018 on the progress of 
our work.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of 
Education regarding this matter.  


 
8.3.9. New Business: Updated Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading  


Superintendent Munro brought forward two revised board policies for first and/or final reading.  
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which sends 
policies for review to participating districts approximately six times per year.  These recommendations 
reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to 
ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  Following an 
explanation of the policy revisions, MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the 
policies for final reading and approval.  Students Barre and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote 
on this matter. 


 
9. Adjournment of Open Session 


As there was no further business for the Open Session Meeting, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this Open Session at 9:07 p.m. 


 
10. Return to Closed Session 
 The Board of Education returned to Closed Session at 9:08 p.m. 
 
11. Closed Session Action Report 


5. The Board of Education discussed the initiation of litigation pursuant to Paragraph (4) of 
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (Deciding whether to initiate litigation): one case. 


 
12. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this meeting at 10:02 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Special Meeting on September 19, 2017, 5:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 
300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on September 27, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Special Meeting/Board Candidate Interviews/Provisional Appointment on October 11, 2017, 5:30 
p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on October 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Student Discipline on November 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will be 
held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 
be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14 of 166







 


 


9. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 2018, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


18. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


19. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


20. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 
 
 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


15 of 166



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





    MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
INTER DISTRICT TRANSFER APPEAL HEARINGS 


September 19, 2017 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session for Inter District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting for Inter District Transfer 
Appeals Hearings to order at 5:34 p.m. in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, 
Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance for Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings 
Board President Tracy-Proulx 
Board Member Perez-Granados 
Board Member Threet 
Board Member Vestal 
 
Absent: Board Member Coonerty 
Absent: Board Member Shonick 
 
Superintendent Kris Munro 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Student Services Director Brown 
District Translator Fe Silva Robles 
 
Family – Student #3 
 
Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings – Presentations of Cases 
Note: Although there were three hearings originally scheduled for this meeting – two of the 
hearing requests were granted by Santa Cruz City Schools prior to the meeting.  As a result, the 
Trustees will only vote on the appeal for Student #3 tonight.  Format:  Trustees and Parties 
moved to the Library Quiet Room.  Parent/Guardian Advocate had five minutes to present the 
case for the appeal of the denial.  Ms. Brown had five minutes to present the case for the denial 
of the transfer.  The Trustees had 10 minutes to ask clarifying questions.  At the conclusion of 
the presentations, all parties returned to the main library. 
 
IDT Appeal Hearing Student #3 
 
Convene Full Board Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Special Meeting Open Session to order at 6:02 p.m. in 
the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 
 


16 of 166







Vote on Inter-District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Tracy-Proulx thanked the family of Student #3 for their presence at the hearing 
and for sharing their personal story.  The Board of Education reviews each hearing packet with 
respect and gives serious consideration to each situation. 


1. MSP (Threet/Vestal) 4-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the Inter-District 
Transfer for Student #3.   


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


None 
 
Adjournment 
As there was no further business to come before the Trustees for the Special Meeting, Board 
President Tracy-Proulx adjourned the Special Meeting Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing 
6:05 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on September 27, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Special Meeting/Board Candidate Interviews/Provisional Appointment on October 
11, 2017, 5:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 
Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on October 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Student Discipline on November 1, 2017, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa 
Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa 
Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on 
January 31, 2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda 
Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17 of 166







13. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise 
on May 23, 2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda 
Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


18. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


19. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 


recording: 


 


 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  


 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 
 


18 of 166



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   September 27, 2017 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


  


  


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 


submitted. 


  


  


BACKGROUND: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code, and the negotiated contract.  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


19 of 166







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.1 


2017-2018 ATHLETIC COACHES: 


  


Dusten Dennis, Cross Country Coach, Branciforte Middle School, fall season. 


 


Christopher Iniguez, Boys Varsity Swim Coach, Harbor High School, spring season. 


 


Jake Soares, Girls Varsity Swim Coach, Harbor High School, spring season. 


 


Kyle Suess, Boys Soccer Coach, Mission Hill Middle School, fall season. 


 


  


EXTRA WORK AGREEMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Margaret Alberti, Piano Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to exceed 24 


hours 


 


Johanna Atkinson, Drawing & Painting Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, 


not to exceed 24 hours 


 


Anne Cappiello, After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to exceed 


30 hours 


 


Janna Bedell, After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to exceed 18 


hours 


 


Jacqueline Espinosa, Color Guard Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to 


exceed 24 hours 


 


Briana Giorgione, Marine Lab Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to 


exceed 24 hours 


 


Kingdon Humann, After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to 


exceed 30 hours 


 


Peter Johnson, Robotics Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to exceed 24 


hours 


 


20 of 166







 


AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


 


EXTRA WORK AGREEMENTS (continued): 


 


Certificated: 


 


Tawn Kennedy, Bike Club Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to exceed 


24 hours 


 


Sonia Le, Fashion & Sewing, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to exceed 24 hours 


 


Jaime Moreno-Avalos, Soccer Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to 


exceed 24 hours 


 


Katya Perez, Minecraft Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to exceed 24 


hours 


 


Nancy Puhvel, School Counselor for attendance support, Soquel High, 8/21/17 - 6/7/18, not to exceed 


800 hours 


 


Elaina Ramer, After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to exceed 


18 hours 


 


Matthew Schutz, After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to 


exceed 18 hours 


 


Lindsay Shimasaki, After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to 


exceed 55 hours 


 


Nancy Tocchini,  CELDT Examiner, Curriculum, Instruction & Assessment, 9/15/17 - 6/8/18, not to exceed 


30 hours 


 


Nicole Tsao,  After School Learning Center Instruction, Harbor High, 9/5/17 - 12/20/17, not to exceed 15 


hours 


 


Randy Villegas, Drumline Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to exceed 


33 hours 


 


21 of 166







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:      September 27, 2017 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


  


  


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


   
  


 


22 of 166







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel: Kenee Houser 9/20/2017 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Barnes, Linda, Instructional Technician/ASES - MH, 10hrs/9mos, effective 9/18/17 


Blanck, Adrian, Custodian - SC, 40hrs/12mos, effective 9/13/17 


Bronstein,Dana,  Instructional Technician/Life Lab - GA, 15hrs/9mos, effective 8/30/17 


Curry, Ronee, Learning Assistant - 7.5hrs/9mos and IT-EI - 7.5hrs/9mos - WL, effective 9/13/17  


Harris, Cayla, Learning Assistant - GA, 15hrs/9mos, effective 9/12/17 


Hawley, Laura, Learning Assistant - WL, 15hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Jarquin-Robles, Kimberly, Instructional Technician - BSS, 19.5hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Lawrence, Nicole, Library/Media Service Asst. - DL, 10hrs/9mos, effective 9/20/17  


Nelsen, Nicole, Instructional Technician - BV, 28hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


North, Kristine, Instructional Technician - WL, 15hrs/9mos, effective 9/11/17  


Rogers, Lauren, Instructional Technician-PBS - HH, 26hrs/9mos, effective 9/11/17 


Struckmeyer, Hailie, Instructional Technician-PBS - BV, 26hrs/9mos, effective 8/11/178 


Promotion: 


Berdan, Jory, from Personnel Assistant - PC - 40hrs/12mos to Confidential - Administrative 


Assistant - HR - 40hrs/12mos, effective 9/22/17  


Kimpton, Reyena, from Learning Asst. 18.5hrs/9mos to Instructional Technician - EI 


15hrs/9mos, effective 9/20/17 


Roberts, John, from Media Textbook Clerk - SQ 17.5hrs/9mos to Student Data Technician - SE, 


40hrs/12mos, effective 9/5/17 


Voluntary Demotion:   


None 


 


 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


DeMarco, Roxana, Yard Duty - WL, from 3.0hrs/9mos to 4.64hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/17  


 Additional FTE/Position:  


23 of 166







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement - Effective 8/22/17: 


Milazzo, Sheri, Learning Assistant - 15hrs/9mos and Yard Duty 2.5hrs/9mos - DL  


Ramirez, Denise, Learning Assistant 15hrs/9mos and Yard Duty  3hrs/9mos - WL 


Franks, Dorothy, Site Program Coordinator - 4hrs/9mos - WL 


Musch, Katrin, Instructional Tech. - 3.75hrs/9mos, Learning Asst. 11.25hrs/9mos, and Yard Duty 


3hrs/9mos - WL  


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer / Reinstate:  


None 


Transfer W/Increase FTE:+ 


None 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Enriquez Castillo, Rocio, Food Service Worker - FS, 17.5hrs/mos, effective 8/25/17 


Goldsmith, Daniel, Accompanist - SQ, 13hrs/9mos, effective 9/15/17 


Grothe, Jeanette, Campus Supervisor - HH, 40hrs/9mos, effective 9/21/17 


Kianpour, Dahria, Confidential Administrative Assistant - HR, 40hrs/12mos, resignation, 


effective 9/21/17 


Kianpour, Jacqueline, Instructional Technician/ASES - GA, 19.50hrs/9mos, resignation,  effective 


9/21/17 


Shanahan, Camille, Instructional Technician - SE, 25hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 8/21/17  


 


 


Retirement: 


None 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


24 of 166







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


New EWA/Hourly Employees: 


Catanach, John, System Support Specialist - IT, not to exceed 400hrs, 9/11/17 - 3/11/18 


Villegas, Randy, Instructional Specialist/Band - SC, not to exceed 171hrs, 8/28/17 to 6/7/18  


Existing EWA/Hourly Employees:  


Alvarez, Sandra, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Arevalo Rivas, Delmy, Sub Custodian - MO, not to exceed 200hrs, 8/1/17 - 6/8/18 


Aubry, Martin, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 10hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/7/18 


Baldwin, Christian, Maintenance Specialist - MO, not to exceed 60hrs, 9/3/17 to 6/8/18 


Barrientos, Vickie, School Community Coordinator - CP, not to exceed 65hrs, 9/16/17 to 6/1/18 


Barrientos, Vickie, School Community Coordinator - CP, not to exceed 10hrs, 9/16/1 to 6/1/18 


Bernal, Guadalupe, Senior Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 12hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Bispo, Lorraine, Account Tech - BMS, not to exceed 70hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Blanck, Adrian, Sub Custodian - MO, not to exceed 60hrs, 8/1/17 to 6/8/18 


Carranza, Helena, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 28hrs, 9/13/17 to 6/8/18 


Carreno Contreras, Eunice, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 25hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Casey, Patrick, Sub School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 40hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/7/18 


Castaneda, Frances, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 40hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/7/18 


Chavez, Audrey, Instructional Technician-Elementary Intervention - WL, to exceed 27hrs, 


9/18/17 to 11/3/17 


Cross, Patricia, Student Data Technician - SPED, not to exceed 100hrs, 8/28/17 to 9/30/17 


Dalbesio, Allyson, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Dalbesio, Allyson, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 1.5hrs, 10/1/17 to 12/22/17 


Day-Smith, Jan, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 10hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/7/18 


Dimarzio, Ruth, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Elliott Perkins, Pamela, Secretary II - BM, not to exceed 20hrs, 8/14/17 to 8/21/17 


Elliott Perkins, Pamela, Secretary II - HR, not to exceed 8hrs, 8/8/17 to 8/17/17 


Enriquez Castillo, Rocio, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Ericksen, Cynthia, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Ericksen, Cynthia, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 1.5hrs, 10/1/17 to 12/22/17 


Fennell-Tortoledo, Alex, Senior Custodian - MO, not to exceed 100hrs, 9/2/17 to 6/30/18 


Fox, Darin, Campus Supervisor - SU, not to exceed 55hrs,  7/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Gaona, Mireya, Instructional Technician PBS - SPED, not to exceed 3hrs, 8/17/17 


Gates, Angela, Library Media Services - SQ, not to exceed 30hrs, 9/1/17 to 6/7/18 


25 of 166







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Gonzales, Elisa, School Community Coordinator - CP, not to exceed 10hrs, 9/16/17 to 6/1/18 


Gonzales, Elisa, School Community Coordinator - CP, not to exceed 65hrs, 9/16/17 to 6/1/18 


Gonzales, Laura, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Gonzalez Espinoza, Fatima, Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 16hrs, 8/9/17 to 8/15/17 


Hebert, Juliette, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Hebert, Juliette, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 9/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Jackson, Dwayne, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 10hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/7/18 


Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Kauss, Kimberly, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant/Training - HR, not to exceed 7hrs, 8/9/18 to 8/22/18 


Koopmans, Jason, Instructional Technician PBS - SPED, not to exceed 90hrs, 8/22/17 to 


12/31/17 


Koopman, Jason, Instructional Technician PBS - SPED, not to exceed 4hrs, 8/18/17 


Lara, Christopher, Head Custodian - MO, not to exceed 60hrs, 7/26/17 - 6/8/18 


Larkin, Timothy, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 40hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/7/18 


Lawson, Sandra, Food Service Sub/Support - FS, not to exceed 25hrs, 7/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Leffew, Dustin, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 24hrs, 9/1/17 to 10/17/17 


Linsdale, Troy, Instructional Technician PBS - SE, not to exceed 7hrs, 8/17/17 to 8/22/17 


Martinez Garzia, Perla, Instructional Tech./PBIS - GA, not to exceed 145hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/17/18 


McHale, Betsy, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 6hrs, 9/1/17 to 6/30/18 


McInerney, Teresa, Instructional Technician/PBS - SE, not to exceed 7hrs, 8/17/17 to 8/22/18 


Miller, Lisa, Instructional Technician/PBS - WL, not to exceed 20hrs, 9/6/17 to 10/13/17 


Roberts, John, Media Textbook Clerk - SQ, not to exceed 10hrs, 8/1/17 to 6/30/18 


Rodriguez, Joleen, Instructional Technician/PBS - SE, not to exceed 90hrs, 8/22/17 to 12/31/17 


Rodriguez, Joleen, Instructional Technician/PBS - SE, not to exceed 4hrs, 8/18/17 


Saarni, Richard, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 40hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/30/18 


Santacruz, Analilia, School Community Coord. - MH, not to exceed 65hrs, 9/16/17 to 6/1/18 


Santacruz, Analilia, School Community Coord. - MH, not to exceed 10hrs, 9/16/17 to 6/1/18 


Sepulveda, Irma, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 10hrs, 8/22/17 to 6/30/18 


Shafer, Elizabeth, Sit Account Specialist - MH, not to exceed 50hrs, 8/15/17 to 12/31/17 


Shafer, Elizabeth, Site Account Specialist - MH, not to exceed 50hrs, 1/1/18 to 6/30/18 


Silva-Robles, FE, District Translation - SU, not to exceed 50hrs, 8/15/17 to 6/30/08 


Silva-Robles, FE, School Community Coordinator - CAI, not to exceed 10hrs, 9/16/17 to 6/1/18 


26 of 166







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Teachout, Jon, Instructional Technician/PBS-SE, not to exceed 4hrs, 8/18/17  


Ungor, John, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 40hrs, 8/21/17 to 6/30/18 


Villegas, Randy, Instructional Tech. - Band - SC, not to exceed 171hrs, 8/28/17 to 6/7/18  


Weckler, Rosario, School Comm. Coord. /Training - HR, not to exceed 4hrs, 8/15/17 to 8/17/17 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


Peregrin, Sharon, Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 8hrs,  9/14/2017 


Routh, Patricia, Principal’s Secretary/Training - HR, not to exceed 14hrs, 8/8/17 to 8/22/17 


Routh, Patricia, Secretary II - BM, not to exceed 8hrs, 8/21/17 


Out of Class: 


Singh, Rajwinder, Groundskeeper III - MO, not to exceed 656hrs, 6/8/17 to 6/30/18 


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 


Adesina, Olubukola, Playground Recess Coach - GA, not to exceed 550hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Avila Moreno, Mario, Yard Duty - DL, not to exceed 300hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Carmichael, Catherine, Yard Supervision - WL, not to exceed 400hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Carranza, Helena, Yard Duty - WL, not to exceed 625hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Ciraulo, Sharon, Yard Duty Supervisor - GA, not to exceed 450hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Dew, Christopher, Playground Recess Coach - BV, not to exceed 550hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Kenagy, Janelle, Playground Coach - DL, not to exceed 411hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


Stephens, Debra, Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 273hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 


 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Accounts Payable Technician 


Administrative Assistant-Confidential 


Food Service Worker 


Lead Account Technician 


 


 


27 of 166







POs Quotes & Bids cover 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $88,300 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $88,300 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


28 of 166







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


September 27, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 092717\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


    
PO/REQ 


NO. SITE 
DOLLAR 


AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00722 Finance $3,120.00 School Services Annual Fiscal Budget services for 
17/18. Core Budget. 


18-00735 Student Services $24,000.00 Santa Cruz Metro Open Order for Youth and Adult 
Bus passes.  Unrestricted. 


18-00767 Student Services $6,950.00 Hearing Conservation 17/18 Hearing Test services.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00768 District Office $7,876.42 California Premier 
Restoration 


Confirming for Payment – Water 
Damage clean up at the District 
Office, Business Services.  
Insurance. 


18-00769 Bay View $13,050.90 California Premier 
Restoration 


Confirming for Payment – Water 
Damage Clean up.  Insurance. 


18-00770 Curriculum $6,000.00 Silicon Valley 
Mathematics 


SVMI Membership fee for 17/18. 
Title I. 


18-00802 B40 Small Schools $3,123.94 Phoenix Ceramics Skutt Kiln – Includes delivery and 
set up.  MAA. 


18-00804 Various $4,000.00 Thomas Musical 
Instruments 


Instrument repairs.  Measure O. 


18-00810 Harbor High $3,274.33 Peninsula Sports Inc. Confirming for Payment – Fall 
Game fees.  Measure O. 


18-00812 Soquel High $6,577.51 Albert’s Plumbing Sewer main repair.  Ongoing and 
Major Maint. 


18-00813 Various $7,500.00 Superior Alarm Open Order for Alarm 
Monitoring services.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00850 Mission Hill $6,291.48 Coastal Enterprises Confirming for Payment – PE 
Uniforms.  Student Payments. 


18-00851 DeLaveaga $32,773.10 CRW Industries Change Order #1, Project #2016-
05.  Elem. Bond. 


18-00898 Various $4,000.00 Cintas Corp. Summer Carpet cleaning.  
Ongoing & Major Maint. 


18-00901 Superintendent $20,000.00 Carolyn Post CSA for Board member and Supt. 
Admin. Coaching.  Unrestricted. 


     


29 of 166







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


September 27, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 092717\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00902 Student Services $5,250.00 Seeds Community 
Resolution 


Confirming for Payment – 
Restorative Justice Public 
trainings.  MAA. 


18-00385 Various $20,000.00 Sycamore Farms Change Order to cover Goat 
Grazing.  Ongoing & Major 
Maint. 


18-00926 Santa Cruz, Soquel, 
Harbor High 


$5,000.00 APPI Open Order to service Swimming 
pools.  Ongoing & Major Maint. 


18-00925 Warehouse $21,058.90 Contract Paper Group Truckload of 30% recycled copy 
paper to replenish stock.  
Unrestricted. 


41960 Special Ed. $1,500.00 Maria E.A. Ballard, MPT Change Order – And – 
Agreement for Professional 
Services Revision:  to provide 
additional direct physical 
therapy services to a student 
during the 2017-2018 school 
year. Special Education 


     
     
     
     
     
     


 


30 of 166







 
   
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.9.5.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Enviroplex Quote for Pre-Manufactured Restroom and 
Snack Bar Building for Harbor High Athletic Fields Project  


 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the quote from Enviroplex for a premanufactured restroom and snack bar 
building related to the Harbor High Athletic Fields Project.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
This Harbor High project was identified as part of the District Masterplan.   The quote 
was based on  piggy-backable contract pricing through the Las Lomitas School District. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$481,970.91 
The budget for the sign is from Measure ‘A’ Bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed; ____________________________________ Date; _______________________ 
 
 


31 of 166







9/1/2017   11:48 AM


P-back 


Item #
Description Unit  Qty  Piggyback Price  Total 


1-STORY RIGID STEEL MOMENT FRAME BUILDINGS              1 


1000


24x40 Typical Classroom [With no floor Coverings:  With Ceiling 


Tiles; LED light fixtures with dimming control; 9’ floor to ceiling 


height in all modules; 2x4 fixed grid, lay in panel ceiling system 


(no suspension wires); (1) 3070 steel door w/Schlage lever 


hardware (2) 8040 windows, (2) porcelain/steel marker boards, 


battery wall clock, walls-full height tackboard; (6) duplex 


receptacles; (1) 125 amp single-phase panel; (1) 3.5 ton Bard wall 


mount HVAC with ducted air and programmable T-Stat; Standard 


bi-pitch roof design, approximately .25:12 dual slope, 5’ overhang 


in front 2'6"rear overhang.


EA              1  $        51,942.95  $            51,942.95 


1006 add 12x40 center module where Ss< 1.875 EA              1  $        20,924.90  $            20,924.90 


Sub-floor options              1 


1102 Concrete floor 125 lb floor load, light weight fill, 3" fill (adder) Per module              3  $          9,205.97  $            27,617.91 


Concrete Foundations 0              1  $                     -   


2200
12x40 at grade foundation w/ 18" crawl space and 12" footing 


embedment (initial foundation segment)
EA              3  $        13,219.61  $            39,658.84 


2201 12x40 at grade foundation (additional foundations segments) EA              1  $        10,187.60  $            10,187.60 


2204 Rat slab, 2" rough finish Per sf       1,440  $                 4.73  $              6,816.70 


2210 Concrete Foundation Bolt Kit 50 or 65 Lb Floor EA              3  $               70.37  $                 211.12 


2300 2x4 access vent well with retained metal grate (Non ADA) EA              1  $          3,793.82  $              3,793.82 


2302 4' polyvent EA              2  $          1,476.91  $              2,953.82 


2304 12" high, 24 ga metal flashing Per lf          152  $               19.10  $              2,903.47 


0 Wood or engineered wood products 0              1  $                     -   


2402 2x6 exterior wall studs in lieu of 2x4 Per lf          152  $                 4.83  $                 733.77 


Cement based or stucco              1 


2507 3-coat stucco control joint Per lf       1,672  $                 6.06  $            10,124.17 


2508 1x4 cement board trim or battens Per lf          836  $                 4.23  $              3,539.98 


2510 Acrylic Color - Standard Color Selections Per sf       1,672  $                 1.06  $              1,774.34 


Roofing Options              1  $                     -   


2701 Extend rear overhang to 5' (2'6" is standard) Per module              1  $             445.26  $                 445.26 


2703 Gable end overhang, up to 18" Per pair              1  $          3,324.48  $              3,324.48 


2715 Downspouts - thick walled round pipe EA              2  $             439.13  $                      878 


0 Roof finish materials (Standing seam roofs: 26 gauge over 5/8" wood roof deck) 0              1  $                     -   


2902 Colored, standing seam metal, Kynar or equal, standard color Per sf       1,675  $                 6.22  $            10,421.17 


GENERAL              1 


3000 Interior wall, 2x4, standard finish (tack board) (Décor or equal) Per lf          180  $               49.16  $              8,848.60 


3003 Interior wall extension from ceiling level to roof deck Per lf          180  $               33.02  $              5,944.01 


3007 8x4 porcelain / steel markerboard EA             (2)  $             306.88  $               (613.75)


3011 Blocking only, wall mounted accessories, 4x4 Per lf          100  $               11.69  $              1,169.41 


3018 FRP wall panels EA       3,456  $                 3.12  $            10,786.87 


3024 Ceiling tile - food service area approved Per sf          280  $                 1.27  $                 355.40 


3031 Restroom signs (set) EA              1  $             100.81  $                 100.81 


Doors (KD Frames standard)              1 


3102 Stucco flange welded frames - Adder to 3070 Exterior KD Frame EA              3  $             552.59  $              1,657.76 


3103
3070 steel door w/Schlage D95 lever hardware, Norton 7500 door 


closer with hold open
EA              3  $          1,750.99  $              5,252.98 


3105 2068 steel plumb chase door w/ deadbolt EA              2  $          1,416.82  $              2,833.63 


3108
3068 interior wood door in steel frame, sold core, pre-finished 


(Oak Legacy, White Ash or Walnut)
EA              1  $          1,177.94  $              1,177.94 


3123 View light, 8x30 (adder) EA              1  $             184.74  $                 184.74 


3129 10" high kick plate, silver EA              4  $             108.24  $                 432.97 


3200 8040 xox EA             (2)  $             989.20  $                 (1,978)


Concrete Foundations


Santa Cruz City School District  -- Harbor High School
(1) 36x40 Concession / Restroom Building


2013 CBC


32 of 166







9/1/2017   11:48 AM


3234 Aluminum roll-up shutter with serving window, 6040 EA              2  $          6,175.82  $            12,351.65 


Electrical Options              1 


3300 125 amp 1-phase panel EA             (1)  $             706.22  $               (706.22)


3301 150 amp 1-phase panel EA              1  $             974.80  $                 974.80 


3414 Exterior Door Light - LED w/ Photocell - TWS LED EA              3  $             276.87  $                 830.61 


3426 Tubular Skylight (Solatube or equal) EA              4  $          1,536.07  $              6,144.27 


Electrical infrastructure              1 


3504 GFI receptacle EA              6  $             106.32  $                 637.91 


3505 Dedicated circuit EA              3  $             190.84  $                 572.52 


3508 Conduit 3/4" Per lf            75  $                 2.90  $                 217.70 


3512 Motion sensor, switch EA              6  $             250.67  $              1,504.04 


3513 N-light switching w on/off & dim EA              6  $             128.60  $                 771.62 


3517 Daylight control EA              2  $             313.44  $                 626.88 


3605 Exhaust Fan - Orbit 150CFM (or equal) EA              7  $             296.40  $              2,074.80 


4251
Bard 3 ton W, "Quiet Climate 1" wall hung heat pump w/CRV, 4 


duct runs, programmable T-stat
EA             (1)  $          5,210.43  $            (5,210.43)


PLUMBING 0              1 


4903 WC wall hung, flush valve, ADA / 15" height EA            13  $          2,313.43  $            30,074.63 


4905 Urinal, flush valve, ADA or specified height EA              4  $          1,672.32  $              6,689.27 


5000 Lavatory, wall hung, ADA or specified height, cold only EA              8  $          1,714.81  $            13,718.46 


5004 Sink, mop, floor mount, cold only EA              1  $          1,878.70  $              1,878.70 


5011 Pot sink: 3 compartment: Just NSFB-354-24RL 3 (or equal) EA              1  $          8,347.46  $              8,347.46 


5012 Prep sink: 1 compartment: Just NSFB-124-24L (or equal) EA              1  $          4,744.66  $              4,744.66 


5013 Hand sink: Just A-33338 (or equal) EA              1  $          2,899.22  $              2,899.22 


5018 hot/cold faucet - adder EA              4  $               79.59  $                 318.36 


5019 goose neck faucet EA              3  $               68.79  $                 206.37 


5101 Water Heater, 30 to 50 gal, electric, 240V EA              1  $          2,450.65  $              2,450.65 


5201 Ice maker supply box (metal) EA              1  $             567.00  $                 567.00 


5203 Hose bib, recessed (wall hydrant) EA              1  $          1,143.07  $              1,143.07 


5208 Copper pipe, Type "L", rough in only and fixture fitting, ea EA              4  $             830.78  $              3,323.12 


5210 Floor Drain EA              5  $          1,155.20  $              5,775.99 


0 Toilet partitions 0              1  $                     -   


5304 Bobrick Sierra Series solid color composite ADA stall EA              2  $          3,515.42  $              7,030.84 


5305 Bobrick Sierra Series solid color composite standard stall EA            11  $          2,797.51  $            30,772.62 


5307 Bobrick Sierra Series solid color composite urinal screen 24x42 EA              4  $          1,244.80  $              4,979.19 


5308 Reinforcement post and blocking EA              2  $             357.04  $                 714.09 


0 Toilet accessories 0              1  $                     -   


5400 Grab bars, ADA (set of 2), Bobrick B-5806 EA              4  $             136.35  $                 545.42 


5401 Mirror, 18x30, SS framed, Bobrick B-185-1830 EA              8  $             132.88  $              1,063.04 


5405 Toilet paper dispenser, surface mount, multi-roll, Bobrick B-2888 EA            13  $             102.94  $              1,338.18 


5407 Toilet seat cover dispenser, surface mount, Bobrick B-221 EA            13  $               63.67  $                 827.74 


5410
Paper towel and waste dispenser, recessed (4" wall), Bobrick B-


3944
EA              2  $             147.21  $                 294.41 


5412 Sanitary napkin receptacle, surface mounted, Bobrick B-254 EA              9  $             151.75  $              1,365.77 


5417 Mop and broom holder Bobrick B-239-44 EA              1  $             460.56  $                 460.56 


0 Flooring (all prices per sf unless otherwise noted) 0              1  $                     -   


6100 Armstrong Connection Corlon Per sf          300  $                 9.27  $              2,780.99 


6202 6" cove for epoxy floor LF          348  $               39.99  $            13,917.56 


Sub-Total  $       403,423.10 


ADDITIONAL ITEMS NECESSARY              1 


1
West Star Industries Model No. SHELF Packed: ea 16ga 


Conccession Shelf,  with pass thru extensions, subtop, brackets
Lft            20  $             216.67 4,333.40$              


2 Stainless steel countertops installation at factory EA              1  $          1,718.32 1,718.32$              


3 Sealed concrete floor (except concession area) ft2       1,140  $                 6.58 7,501.20$              


4 Drinking fountain -- Haws Hi/Low w/bottle filler EA              1  $          6,155.89 6,155.89$              


5 CREDIT -- Tackboard on interior added walls Lft      (1,332)  $                 1.05 (1,398.60)$             


          1 Sub-Total 18,310.21$         


PROJECT CLOSE OUT ITEMS              1 


33 of 166







9/1/2017   11:48 AM


1 Labor to close out site hour            55  $               65.00 3,575.00$              


2 On-Site Labor (plumbing close-out) hour            40  $             181.25 7,250.00$              


3 Crane day              1  $          8,500.00 8,500.00$              


4 Delivery (double drop trailers for concrete floors) floor              3  $          4,400.00 13,200.00$            


5 Installation floor              3  $          2,850.00 8,550.00$              


6 Concrete foundation design N/A  $             350.00 -$                       


7 2,017.12$              


8 Bond              1 4,235.94$              


9 Estimated Tax              1 12,909.54$            


          1 Grand Total 481,970.91$     


Notes:


1


2
-$                      -$                          


3


-$                      -$                          


Administrative Fee to Las Lomitas School District (Final Project Manual Section 00110; Item 20 Sub-section 


2) (.5% of piggyback building price)


Foundation design charges are waived if concrete foundations remain in ENV scope; if removed, cost is $350 per floor


Additional design & foundation costs may be incurred if the site specific soils condition or CGS review prompt footings that 


are outside of Enviroplex's standard foundation design 


Pursuant to recent DSA guidelines as described on the new 1-MR form regarding the "Delegation of Authority for Modular & 


Relocatable Buildings", site specific inspection fees will be necessary if Enviroplex's structural engineer determines that 


he/she is required to personally inspect and observe construction site conditions and foundation progress. The scope and 


scale of this requirement will generally relate to a number of factors including, but not limited to, the experience of the 


foundation contractor, foundation design complexity, building square footage, geographic location and site & soils 


condition. These charges shall be owner responsibility and coordinated directly with Enviroplex's structural engineer. As 


outlined in the DSA bulletin, these responsibilities can be sub-delegated to the project's Architect of record at the owner's 


direction and discretion.


34 of 166







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
Vendor Warrants cover 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2017 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 9/2/17–9/15/17.  Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


35 of 166







36 of 166







37 of 166







38 of 166







39 of 166







40 of 166







41 of 166







42 of 166







43 of 166







44 of 166







                          
                      
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
C:\Users\bssec\Desktop\Boardpad 092717\Budget Transfers August cover.docx 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   September 27, 2017 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2017-2018 budget transfers dated 
from 8/1/17 through 8/31/17, BE#122937– 127889.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


45 of 166







46 of 166







47 of 166







48 of 166







49 of 166







50 of 166







51 of 166







52 of 166







53 of 166







54 of 166







55 of 166







56 of 166







57 of 166







58 of 166







59 of 166







60 of 166







61 of 166







62 of 166







63 of 166







64 of 166







65 of 166







66 of 166







67 of 166







68 of 166







69 of 166







70 of 166







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Gifts 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2017 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Acceptance of the following gift donated to the Santa Cruz City School District. 
 
Santa Cruz High School 


 Rebecca Barker and Jeremy Neuner donated $500 to Mr. Martin’s Biology Class for 
classroom supplies. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Board Policy/Regulation 3290, the Governing Board may accept on behalf of and 
for the District, any bequest, gift of money or gift of property, valued at $100 or more, that is 
presented to the District.  A letter of appreciation will be sent to the donors.  
 


71 of 166







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
contracts cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contracts and Consultant Services Agreements 
 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify contracts and consultant services agreements executed pursuant to Board Policy 3300. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 14, 2017, the Board of Education delegated authority to enter into contracts on behalf 
of Santa Cruz City Schools and to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment and 
services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111 and Education Code 
Section 17605 to the Superintendent of Schools or designees, and required that the Board of 
Trustees ratify contracts within sixty (60) days of incurring the expense. 
 
The following contract is presented for ratification: 


1. Educational Services 
1. Educational Services/Small Schools – Consultant Services Agreement with 


UCSC CA; professional development for ARK teachers re Common Core 
standards for reading and writing lesson planning. 


2. Educational Services/Harbor High – CSA for Organized Binder consultant 
services to train teachers and students about binder system. 


3. Educational Services/Special Education – Maria Ballard. Revision to 
Agreement for Professional Services for physical therapy services. 


2. Business Services 
1. Wasinger Building Inspection Services – Agreement for DSA inspection 


services for foundation and installation of new Soquel High marquee 
2. Wenger & Associates – Agreement for review, update and workshops re 


regulations for fundraising and ASB accounting. 
3. A-Z Bus Sales – Lease/Rental Agreement of two special needs adapted 


school buses, month to month 
4. North American Technical Services – In-Plant Inspection of portable 


classroom for Adult Ed to replace classroom damaged in winter storms. 
5. Bay Alarm – Response &/or Patrol Agreement for security services at 


Natural Bridges campus. 
6. School Services of CA – Agreement for study on Food Services operation 


and budget. 


72 of 166







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.1.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 2017-18 Consultant Service Agreement: Education Services: Small 
Schools – UCSC CA Writing Program 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2017 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this consultant service agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
ARK Teachers will work to understand and use Common Core standards for writing in lesson 
planning and to develop reading and writing skills with students.  The training will focus on 
providing scaffolding for English Learners and struggling writers. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   $3600.00 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   Local Control Funding Formula 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS Students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


73 of 166







74
 o


f 1
66







75
 o


f 1
66







76
 o


f 1
66







77 of 166







78 of 166







79 of 166







80 of 166







81 of 166







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.1.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Agreement For Professional Services  –  Special Education 
 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services revision for additional services 
through the 2017-2018 school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.  Copies of the agreement have 
been provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request to add:  Direct Physical Therapy Services  for a student in Special Education 
who requires these services.  They are provided through Maria E.A. Ballard, a licensed MPT, and 
are mandated in the student’s IEP.  (An increase to existing agreement by:  $1,500.00)  August 
23, 2017 through June 30, 2017. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Additional Fiscal Impact:  $1,500.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


82 of 166







83 of 166







84 of 166







85 of 166







86 of 166







87 of 166







88 of 166







89 of 166







90 of 166







91 of 166







92 of 166







93 of 166







94 of 166







Agreement for Inspector of Record (IOR) services. This agreement is made on the    29th   day of 
   August   , 2017 by and between  Santa Cruz City Schools, hereinafter called the Owner, and 
Wasinger Inspection Services Inc. hereinafter called the Inspector. The owner and the inspector 
set forth and agree as follows. 


SECTION 1   INSPECTOR/OWNER RELATIONSHIP 


This proposal is for inspection services provided by an independent contractor for reimbursement  
purposes. The inspector will be responsible to the owner, specifically the school board, as the 
School District’s authorized agent, the architect and the Division of the State Architect (DSA). 
The owner will expect usual and customary reporting of the work adherence i.e., compliance with 
the approved plans, specifications, IOR’s report on general inspection activities and progress, 
IOR’s notification on existing, pending or probable construction issues. 


The Inspector of Record is appointed by the owner upon being found satisfactory to the Division 
of the State Architect (DSA). 


SECTION 2   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY 


A. The owner shall be responsible for providing the inspector with an office space 
necessary and adequate for the performance of his work. The owner also agrees 


 to provide necessary office furniture and utilities to support the office. (desks, 
 chairs, file cabinets, plan table, telephone, fax, internet, etc.) 


B. The owner agrees to pay the inspector as compensation for his services a fee of 
 $720.  The inspector shall submit a monthly invoice for services on the first day 


of the month for services rendered in the previous month. 


C. The owner agrees to name the inspector as an additional insured on the owner’s 
 liability insurance policy so as to protect the inspector from incurring and 


expense for counsel should the inspector be named as a defendant or codefendant 
 resulting from professional connection with the project. 


SECTION 3   INSPECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


A. The inspector shall conduct inspections of all parts of the work of construction in 
all stages of its progress to assure that all work is in accordance with the 
approved documents.  


B. The inspector shall work under the direction of the Architect. All inconsistencies  
 or seeming errors in the contract documents shall be reported to the architect in 


writing for interpretation and instructions. 


C. The inspector shall keep a file of approved contract documents on the site at all 
times, including all reports of testing and inspection required by the contract 
documents. The inspector shall have codes and regulations necessary to perform 


 the required inspections. 
     Page 1 of 2 
     


95 of 166







D. The inspector shall schedule all “special inspections and tests” and notify the   
architect of the results and keep files when each item is completed. 


E. The inspector shall maintain a record of all inspections and forward to the owner, 
 architect, construction manager and DSA all reports required by Title 24, CCR. 


F. The inspector shall not authorize deviations from the contract documents or 
direct any portion of the work. 


G. The inspector shall not be responsible or liable for sufficiency of construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures in connection with the 


 project.  


H. The inspector will review and approve the general contractor’s billing prior to 
submitting to the architect. 


SECTION 4   HOLD HARMLESS-LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 


It is understood and agreed by the parties that the inspector shall indemnify and hold harmless the  
Owner, its Executive Board, officers and employees from any claim, demand, liability, judgment 
or expense, including court costs, attorney’s fees and other costs which may arise by reason of an 
Injury to persons or property sustained by the inspector in connection with the construction of the  
project. 


SECTION 5   ENTIRE AGREEMENT 


This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. No other agreement made on or 
before the effective date of the agreement will be binding on the parties. 


SECTION 6   GOVERNING LAW AND COMPLIANCE 


This agreement is of inspection services for DSA application #             01-116285                    
This agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice by 
registered or certified United States mail to the other party. 


Soquel High School Marquee Sign 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools                         Inspector:    Fred E. Wasinger 
  536 Palm St.                                                        41 Vista Drive 
  Santa Cruz, CA. 95060                                     Prunedale, Ca. 93907 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year first 
written above. 
District: Trevor Miller     Inspector: 


BY                                      BY !  
TITLE   Facilities Director     TITLE          President                 
DATE        DATE  08-29–17   


     Page 2 of 2


96 of 166







Agreement for Inspector of Record (IOR) services. This agreement is made on the    29th   day of 
   August   , 2017 by and between  Santa Cruz City Schools, hereinafter called the Owner, and 
Wasinger Inspection Services Inc. hereinafter called the Inspector. The owner and the inspector 
set forth and agree as follows. 


SECTION 1   INSPECTOR/OWNER RELATIONSHIP 


This proposal is for inspection services provided by an independent contractor for reimbursement  
purposes. The inspector will be responsible to the owner, specifically the school board, as the 
School District’s authorized agent, the architect and the Division of the State Architect (DSA). 
The owner will expect usual and customary reporting of the work adherence i.e., compliance with 
the approved plans, specifications, IOR’s report on general inspection activities and progress, 
IOR’s notification on existing, pending or probable construction issues. 


The Inspector of Record is appointed by the owner upon being found satisfactory to the Division 
of the State Architect (DSA). 


SECTION 2   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY 


A. The owner shall be responsible for providing the inspector with an office space 
necessary and adequate for the performance of his work. The owner also agrees 


 to provide necessary office furniture and utilities to support the office. (desks, 
 chairs, file cabinets, plan table, telephone, fax, internet, etc.) 


B. The owner agrees to pay the inspector as compensation for his services a fee of 
 $720.  The inspector shall submit a monthly invoice for services on the first day 


of the month for services rendered in the previous month. 


C. The owner agrees to name the inspector as an additional insured on the owner’s 
 liability insurance policy so as to protect the inspector from incurring and 


expense for counsel should the inspector be named as a defendant or codefendant 
 resulting from professional connection with the project. 


SECTION 3   INSPECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


A. The inspector shall conduct inspections of all parts of the work of construction in 
all stages of its progress to assure that all work is in accordance with the 
approved documents.  


B. The inspector shall work under the direction of the Architect. All inconsistencies  
 or seeming errors in the contract documents shall be reported to the architect in 


writing for interpretation and instructions. 


C. The inspector shall keep a file of approved contract documents on the site at all 
times, including all reports of testing and inspection required by the contract 
documents. The inspector shall have codes and regulations necessary to perform 


 the required inspections. 
     Page 1 of 2 
     


97 of 166







D. The inspector shall schedule all “special inspections and tests” and notify the   
architect of the results and keep files when each item is completed. 


E. The inspector shall maintain a record of all inspections and forward to the owner, 
 architect, construction manager and DSA all reports required by Title 24, CCR. 


F. The inspector shall not authorize deviations from the contract documents or 
direct any portion of the work. 


G. The inspector shall not be responsible or liable for sufficiency of construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures in connection with the 


 project.  


H. The inspector will review and approve the general contractor’s billing prior to 
submitting to the architect. 


SECTION 4   HOLD HARMLESS-LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 


It is understood and agreed by the parties that the inspector shall indemnify and hold harmless the  
Owner, its Executive Board, officers and employees from any claim, demand, liability, judgment 
or expense, including court costs, attorney’s fees and other costs which may arise by reason of an 
Injury to persons or property sustained by the inspector in connection with the construction of the  
project. 


SECTION 5   ENTIRE AGREEMENT 


This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. No other agreement made on or 
before the effective date of the agreement will be binding on the parties. 


SECTION 6   GOVERNING LAW AND COMPLIANCE 


This agreement is of inspection services for DSA application #             01-116285                    
This agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice by 
registered or certified United States mail to the other party. 


Soquel High School Marquee Sign 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools                         Inspector:    Fred E. Wasinger 
  536 Palm St.                                                        41 Vista Drive 
  Santa Cruz, CA. 95060                                     Prunedale, Ca. 93907 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year first 
written above. 
District: Trevor Miller     Inspector: 


BY                                      BY !  
TITLE   Facilities Director     TITLE          President                 
DATE        DATE  08-29–17   


     Page 2 of 2


98 of 166







 
  
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.2.2 
Wenger & Assoc Agrmt re ASB training cover 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Agreement with Wenger & Associates, LLC - ASB 
 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Agreement with Wenger & Associates, LLC to provide training to school sites 
and auxiliary organizations on proper methods of fund-raising and ASB accounting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
District staff have requested an information update on regulations concerning fund-
raising and ASB accounting.  Wenger & Associates have provided a proposal to review 
and suggestions for revisions to existing Board polices and administrative regulations 
and to site parent donation and fee request documents.  They will develop semi-
customized guidebooks and other materials to be presented in workshops for District 
staff.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $6,500.00,  to be paid from the General Fund. 
.  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community.  
 


99 of 166







Compliance Consulting
Professional Development


Attendance
ASBs


August 18, 2017


Patrick Gaffney
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services
Santa Cruz City Schools
405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, CA 95073


Re: Proposal for Engagement of Services


Dear Patrick,


I am pleased to prepare this proposal to assist Santa Cruz City Schools. I have summarized our understanding of the scope of services 
below, with our work approach, our qualifications, and fees to perform the requested services.


Scope of Services
Our understanding is that you want us to help you deliver information to your schools about Associated Student Body and student fee 


regulations, compliant ways to raise funds to support programs, and required controls to minimize risks and audit findings.  We will help 


you achieve this through a top-down and bottom up approach; communicating policy and laws to facilitate compliance via customized 


training and other modalities designed specifically for parent groups, activity advisors, school and district administrators and accounting 


personnel.  A vital service to help Santa Cruz City Schools avoid repayment of illegal fees and potential lawsuits.  


 


Fees
The fee for our services will not exceed $6,500* without the prior approval of Santa Cruz City Schools. We will bill you on a monthly 
basis for services rendered on your behalf. Our hourly rates are: Jeri Wenger, CEO $185/hour and Technical Support Staff $85/hour. 


*In addition to our hourly rate, we will bill you for any incurred out-of-pocket travel expenses on behalf of the District (e.g. lodging, airfare, 
car rental). Monthly invoices will be due upon receipt.


We will strive to complete your work as efficiently as possible and at a fair and reasonable cost. You shall have the right, at all times, to 
terminate this service upon written notice to that effect. In that event, you will be responsible for all services and expenses up to that point.


Scheduling/Timing of Services
We can begin the engagement remotely the week  of September 15, 2017 and it is anticipated that the project can be completed by June 


30, 2018 or sooner. 


100 of 166







2


Work Approach
Our approach to your engagement will consist of the following key tasks:  


1. Identify ASB items for compliance review 
We begin the process by meeting with key Santa Cruz District administrators via WebEx to: (a) review the scope of the project; 
(b) discuss current practices and needs; (c) discuss potential compliance risk and opportunities for improvement thereof; (d) 
develop associated time-lines and expected deliverables.


2. Review and revise existing Board policies and administrative regulations
During this portion of the engagement, we will work directly with designated Business and Educational Services personnel, to 
obtain access to your existing policies and administrative regulations.  We will review and revise these policies and regulations 
specific to Associates Student Bodies, School-Connected Organizations, and allowable student fees.  Our objective is to align  
these with current law and practices to facilitate compliance and minimize risks.  A draft version of these will be submitted to 
you for review and discussion.  Once finalized, we will incorporate these into Santa Cruz City Schools’ personalized manuals. 


3. Review School Site Parent Donation and Fee Request Documents
We will review and modify donation request documents Santa Cruz City Schools Principals and School-Connected Organizations 
submit to us via email process, to facilitate compliance.  We will timely communicate to you any compliance concerns that might 
come to our attention.


4. Deliver Semi- Customized Professional Development Series
We have designed our semi-customized workshop series to deliver critical information in a bottom-up, top down approach.  
This allows us to communicate critical laws, practices, and Santa Cruz City Schools relevant policies to key Santa Cruz City 
Schools groups involved with fundraisers, student fees, and associated student bodies.   We can deliver one or more of our five 
workshop series at your facilities on mutually agreed upon dates and times:
 
1. Activity Coordinators/Coaches Guide to Compliance and Fundraising
2. Fundraising Guidelines
3. Associated Student Bodies: Compliance and Accounting Procedures
4. School-Connected Organizations
5. Student Fees
 
 Our process includes the following key steps:
 
A.  Develop Semi-Customized Guidebooks
We will incorporate into our publications and other resources, Santa Cruz City Schools’ relevant Board policies, regulations, and 
procedures.  We will grant Santa Cruz City Schools permission to use all parts of this publication for purposes of reproduction 
and transmittal to its employees and when applicable, parent organizations. 
 
B.  Provide Camera-Ready Copy of Materials
We will provide you with a camera-ready copy of your semi-customized publication, fact sheets about allowable and prohibited 
food sales and fund-raising activities, sample appropriate donation request language, and PowerPoint handouts for duplicating 
one week before the scheduled workshop date. 


101 of 166







3


C.  Conduct Staff Development
The final step of our top-down and bottom-up approach is to communicate the law and Santa Cruz City Schools specific policies 
pertaining to ASBs, parent organizations, student fees and fundraisers via your semi-customized staff development program.  
We will schedule and conduct the workshop(s) at Santa Cruz City Schools facilities, on mutually agreed upon dates and times.  
Our goal is to make it interactive with adequate Q&A time.  


5. Project Deliverables
The deliverables will include the procedure manuals, PowerPoint presentations, handouts, ongoing progress reports, and other 
agreed upon documents.


6. Quality Control Review and Progress Meetings
Quality control review procedures, designed to assure quality control and to identify issues as they arise, will occur throughout 
the engagement process. Each of the services outlined above includes periodic status meetings and related communications 
to keep you informed of project progress and related matters.


Staffing
I will manage and conduct the entire engagement. Other qualified personnel may provide support and services as deemed appropriate. 


Qualifications
• I have been committed to the education industry for over 30 years.


• Education clients are the single segment of Wenger & Associates, LLC.


• Wenger & Associates, LLC is a leader and active participant in CASBO, ACSA, and CSBA. 


• I bring a strategic perspective to an engagement rather than focusing exclusively on the task at hand.  


• I know the language, issues, and culture of the education market, so you won’t need to spend time familiarizing me with your 
business. You’ll also have the confidence and assurance that comes from knowing your work is being performed by a highly 
qualified and experienced subject matter expert and industry specialists.


I have developed and conducted local and state wide Associated Student Body, Budget, Categorical, Business Services, Curriculum and 
Instruction , and Attendance, compliance workshops, including our comprehensive publications, and have provided similar services to 
other California schools, county offices of education, and community college districts. My thirty plus years of industry experience, gained 
in district and county offices, includes Business Services, Curriculum and Instruction management of and staff development activities on 
attendance accounting, compliance rules, and audit. 


Recent ASB consulting clients have included Dublin Unified School District, Lake Elsinore Unified District, El Monte City Schools, and 
Hayward Unified School District.  Additional information about my qualifications can be found in my resume attached to this proposal.


102 of 166







4


Closing Remarks
I believe that my background and experience provides the expertise you need to complete your objectives. If you have any questions or 
need further information, please feel free to contact me directly. I would be delighted to discuss this proposal with you. 


If these terms and conditions accurately summarize your understanding of our engagement, please indicate your approval and acceptance 
by signing, dating, and returning a copy of this letter to me. 


Thank you very much for your consideration. I look forward to having the opportunity of working with you.


  


        
Jeri A Wenger   


Chief Executive Officer, Wenger & Associates, LLC  


Signature:             Date:     


Printed Name:                


Title:               Santa Cruz City Schools


103 of 166







5


Resume
Jeri Wenger, Founder and Chief Executive Officer


Practice Areas:
• Audit Resolution Assistance


• Compliance Consulting 


• LCFF and Categorical Program Compliance, Accounting, & Optimization


• Attendance & Revenue Improvement Strategies


• Attendance Accounting & State Certification of Attendance   


• Alternative Educational and Intervention Programs 


• ASB Compliance, Monitoring, Accounting & Training 


• Customized Professional Development Programs & Workshops


• Revenue & Efficiency Improvement Strategies 


Industry Expertise:
• K-12 School Districts


• Community Colleges


• County Offices of Education


• Charter Schools


Professional Background:
• Wenger & Associates, Chief Executive Officer, 2011 - current


• School Innovations & Advocacy, Vice President, 2007 - 2011


• Vicenti, Lloyd & Stutzman, Principal, School Business Services, 1999-2007


• Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP, Principal, School Business, 1992-1999


• Chino Unified School District, Chief Business Official, 1990-1992


• San Bernardino County Office of Education, Management Information Systems Manager, 1984-1990


• Chaffey Joint Union High School District, Director, Fiscal Services, 1978-1984


• Pacific Federal Savings, Operations Officer, 1973-1978 


Professional and Community Activities:
• California Association of School Business Officials


• Association of School Business Officials


• Association of California School Administrators


• California School Boards Association


• Coalition for Adequate School Housing


Education: 
• Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Management, University of Redlands, California


• Master of Organizational Leadership, Chapman University, California


• School Business Management Certificate, CSU, San Bernardino


Personal Interests:
• Jeri’s hobbies include portrait painting, wall murals, sculpturing, music, biking, hiking, snorkelling, and kayaking.


104 of 166







6


© 2016 Wenger & Associates, LLC www.wengerandassociates.com2376 N. Euclid Avenue, Upland, CA 91784


Tailor-fit solutions to meet your specific needs 
and provide positive results! 
Our objective is to help public schools increase their bottom line through improved 
operational efficiencies, professional development, improved attendance and 
educational opportunities, cost containment measures, and compliance knowledge. 
Our personalized services include: Consulting and Advisory Services, Professional 
Development, Revenue Enhancement Opportunities, Compliance and Pre-Audit 
Assistance, Budget Development, and Fiscal Assistance.


Student Attendance
We offer three services around student attendance:


Professional Development to educate Districts, County Office of Education, and Charter Schools on effective ways to pro-
actively manage their attendance operations, which increases student attendance and learning time, facilitates compliance and 
minimizes risk. Affordable on-site workshops designed to meet you organization’s unique needs.


Attendance Assessments and Procedures to help public education agencies improve internal controls over their attendance 
system, avoid or resolve significant apportionment audit findings, implement state required procedures and controls, and obtain 
state certification of attendance.


Increase Student Attendance and Learning aligned with the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) pupil engagement 
priority to reduce absences, suspensions, and expulsion rates, resulting in improved student outcomes and increased funding 
for the District’s educational programs. 


Associated Student Bodies and Parent Organizations
Our objective is to help schools and their communities understand how funds can be raised through lawful means to support school programs. 
We communicate policies and laws to better facilitate compliance through personalized training and other methods designed specifically for 
parent groups, activity advisors, school and district administrators, and accounting personnel. Our customized training courses and manuals 
are created with the end user in mind, communicating complex laws and processes in an easy to understand format.


Local Control Funding Formula and Categorical Programs
We work directly with cabinet, categorical, and fiscal personnel to identify opportunities to increase revenues and minimize audit risks. 
We help districts create a defensible definition of their “core program” and implement processes to facilitate compliance and resource 
maximization. 


For more information, please contact: 


Jeri Wenger
Founder and Chief Executive Officer


909.292.8612 


jeri@wengerandassociates.com


105 of 166







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.2.3 
A-Z Bus Sales Lease Rental Agrmt cover 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Lease/Rental Agreement with A-Z Bus Sales for Two Special 
Needs Buses 


MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Lease/Rental Agreement with A-Z Bus Sales for two special needs buses, month to 
month, until no longer needed. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On April 19th 2017, the Board approved the rental of two school buses from A-Z Bus Sales for six 
months.  The original agreement ran from March 1, 2017 and ended September 1, 2017.  These 
two buses (bus #21- 10 passenger/2 wheelchair, bus #22- 22 passenger) have been in 
continuous service transporting special needs students to their programs, including both 
summer school sessions.  This Lease/Rental Agreement will help ensure uninterrupted service 
to the SCCS special needs students attending SCCS and COE programs.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,000.00 per month per bus, total of $4,000.00 per month, continuous until no longer needed.  
The cost will be paid from Home to School Transportation and from Special Ed Transportation 
funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor  


106 of 166







107 of 166







108 of 166







109 of 166







 
   
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.2.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Agreement with North American Technical Services 
Inc.– Adult Ed  Portable 


 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Agreement between North American Technical Services Inc. and Santa Cruz 
City Schools for In-Plant DSA inspection services related to construction inspection for 
the new portable to replace a portable classroom damaged during winter storms the at 
Adult Ed campus..   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Last winter during severe storms a large tree fell and damaged a portable classroom 
building at Adult Ed on La Fonda. This agreement is for the inspection at the 
manufacturing plant where the replacement building will be built.  MADI Group has 
acquired DSA approval. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,400.00 
The budget for the replacement building is from an insurance claim.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed; ____________________________________ Date; _______________________ 
 
 


110 of 166







11
1 


of
 1


66







 
  
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.2.5 
Bay Alarm Agrmt security patrol NB cover 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Agreement with Bay Alarm Response &/or Patrol 
Agreement – Natural Bridges 


 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Agreement with Bay Alarm Response &/or Patrol Agreement for security 
services at the Natural Bridges campus. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In response to concerns raised by the community regarding trespassers and vandalism 
on the Natural Bridges campus, the proposed agreement will provide four hours of 
evening security services at the campus. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$4,500.00 per month, to be paid from the General Fund. 
.  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community.  
 


112 of 166







113 of 166







114 of 166







115 of 166







116 of 166







117 of 166







 
   
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7.2.6 
School Sv of CA agrmt - Food Sv study cover 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  School Services of CA – Agreement for Special Services 
 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the District’s  contract with School Services of California to conduct an analysis 
of the Food Services Department’s operation and budget. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We have been discussing compiling information that will assist SCCS in understanding 
whether or not our Food Services budget deficit is unique to our District.  Additionally, 
we are interested in learning what steps our District may take to reduce our General 
Fund contribution to balance the Food Services fund.  We know that our District has 
open campuses in our high schools, while many of our neighboring districts do not.  
School Services of California has prepared reports for other districts that highlight 
strategies which the District might use to address this challenge.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$28,600.00 to be paid from the General Fund. 
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


118 of 166







 


 


1121 L Street 


 


Suite 1060 


 


Sacramento 


 


California 95814 


 


TEL: 916 . 446 . 7517 


 


FAX: 916 . 446 . 2011 


 


www.sscal.com 


 


 


 


 


June 27, 2017 


 


 


Mr. Patrick Gaffney 


Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


405 Old San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


 


Dear Mr. Gaffney: 


 


School Services of California, Inc., (SSC) is pleased to respond to Santa Cruz 


City Schools’ (SCCS) request for a proposal for an operational review of the 


Food Services division. We are qualified to provide an expert, impartial analysis 


of the operational and financial issues affecting the Food Services program in 


SCCS. 


Issues to be covered by the operational review of the Food Services division 


will include: 


 Review of workflow in the division, including the ability of current staffing 


levels to handle workload peaks 


 Analysis of labor costs, food purchases, and other expenses, in light of 


student participation and revenue constraints 


 Review of operational procedures, statistical data, and key performance 


indicators to determine potential areas for increased efficiencies or 


productivity 


 Areas of enhancement of the internal control structure to detect and correct 


errors in a timely manner 


 Suggestions for the computerization of any manually kept records 


 Identification and suggested elimination of duplicated or unnecessary work 


 Analysis of the current organizational structure to determine potential 


changes in the organizational structure or staffing 


 


119 of 166







Mr. Patrick Gaffney   Page 2 
Santa Cruz City Schools—Food Services Operational Review  June 27, 2017 


 


 


The approach we propose to use includes input from staff and focuses on organization-wide goals. 


The breadth of the recommendations, spanning issues of cost controls to duplication of work effort, 


requires coordination of all affected staff since changes in any one process will likely affect more 


than one individual.  


The operational review work plan is outlined in the following steps: 


Step 1: Measuring Current Operational Status 


This step will consist primarily of interviews with SCCS employees, observation of the work 


environment, and review of key documents. 


The interviews will focus on obtaining an understanding of each position’s job content, work 


schedule, procedures followed, and systems used. The interviews will be scheduled over one to 


two days and will include Food Services staff members along with selected other staff members 


and administrators. Each interviewee should arrive at the meeting with their job description and 


should be prepared to discuss their key duties, how they accomplish those duties, and any 


efficiencies or cost-saving measures that they would recommend. 


Throughout the visit, the work environment will be observed and measurement data will be 


gathered in order to verify the interview results and provide further insight into current Food 


Services operations. Key documents will also be analyzed during this phase, including financial 


and budget reports, bargaining unit agreements, existing job descriptions and organization charts, 


and any other documents necessary to obtain a complete understanding of the Food Services 


department’s workload, operations, and financial situation. 


Step 2: Evaluation of Current Operations  


and Formulation of Recommended Changes 


We will review the data collected in Step 1 and formulate suggestions for operational changes. 


Questions and facts to be considered would include: 


 How might the Food Services’ organizational structure be reorganized to gain efficiency and 


still meet workload demands? 


 Are there inefficiencies—duplicative or ineffective procedures? 


 Is the workload fairly distributed among the existing staff? 


 Are there technology or tools available that can be deployed to gain efficiencies or reduce 


costs? 


120 of 166







Mr. Patrick Gaffney   Page 3 
Santa Cruz City Schools—Food Services Operational Review  June 27, 2017 


 


 


 Are there services that should be provided but are not because of operational or staffing 


limitations? 


 How might reorganization of Food Services staffing levels and/or work schedules improve 


financial performance without reducing services to the school sites and students? 


We will discuss the preliminary study results with the Assistant Superintendent and other staff 


designated by the Assistant Superintendent. 


Step 3: Consultant’s Report 


Our report is expected to be organized in the following manner: 


Executive Summary: Synopsis of the operational study results and major recommendations. 


Study Objectives and Methodologies: Detailed discussion of the study objectives in 


relation to key operational issues identified. This section will also include an overview of our 


methodology in conducting the study. 


Analysis of Current Operations and Recommendations: Description of the existing 


operational structure and financial status and any recommended changes. This section will include 


results of our interviews, review of key documents, and observations of the work environment, 


along with any recommendations to reorganize, gain efficiencies, and/or reduce costs.  


Step 4: Final Report and Follow-up 


We believe the results of any consulting study must be a working tool for school districts we serve. 


To facilitate putting the recommendations into action, we recommend a conference call with SSC 


staff and the Assistant Superintendent to discuss the results and recommended courses of action. 


Study Timeline 


The study will commence at an agreed-upon time. The draft report is expected to be completed 


within six to eight weeks following the site visits and receipt of the required District documents 


necessary to complete the project. 


About SSC’s Consultants 


Staff for this project will include two consultants from SSC from the list below. Each portion of 


the project will be led by a member of SSC with special expertise in the assigned area. 


121 of 166







Mr. Patrick Gaffney   Page 4 
Santa Cruz City Schools—Food Services Operational Review  June 27, 2017 


 


 


Debbie Fry, Director, Management Consulting Services, provides support to school districts, 


charter schools, county offices, and community college districts in school finance and budgeting, 


collective bargaining, employer-employee relations, human resources, special education, and 


general consulting. Debbie brings a wealth of experience in the area of school finance, 


employment, personnel management, and special education. Debbie completed the Fiscal Crisis 


& Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) CBO Mentor Program, earned her Chief Business 


Official (CBO) certification from the California Association of School Business Officials 


(CASBO), and is a certified Administrator of School Finance and Operations from Association of 


School Business Officials (ASBO) International. She has served in increasingly responsible fiscal 


positions in California school districts for more than 20 years and most recently served as the CBO 


and Director of Human Resources at the Metropolitan Education District. Debbie graduated from 


Ashford University with a Master’s degree in Business Administration. 


Brianna García, Director, Management Consulting Services, has worked with school districts 


to strengthen their organizations by conducting organizational reviews, comparative analyses of 


school district resources and staffing, facilities reviews, and charter petition reviews. She has 


provided guidance to school districts as they work through the Local Control and Accountability 


Plan process and also has extensive experience related to planning and development of public 


school facilities, including charter schools and Proposition 39. She has more than a decade of 


professional experience in public K-12 education, worked as Facilities Development Manager for 


the Los Angeles Unified School District, and completed the University of Southern California 


Rossier School of Education School Business Management Program earning designation as a 


certified Chief Business Official. Brianna graduated from the University of Southern California 


with a Bachelor of Architecture, a Master of Planning, and a Master of Real Estate Development. 


John Gray, CIA, President, contributes tremendous practical experience to the management 


consulting team and serves SSC’s clients by conducting fiscal health analyses, providing collective 


bargaining assistance, performing multiyear financial projections, performing school district 


efficiency studies, conducting internal control reviews, conducting district office organization 


reviews, and directing executive search services. Prior to joining SSC, John served as the Director 


of Fiscal Services for the Fresno Unified School District. Prior to joining Fresno Unified, he served 


as Audit Supervisor for the Ticor Title Insurance Company and Auditing Officer for Union Bank. 


He has also performed consulting work for the Fiscal Crisis & Management Assistance Team 


(FCMAT). John received his Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from California State 


University, Fresno, and his Master’s degree in Administrative Leadership from Fresno Pacific 


University. 


Dave Heckler, Director, Technology and Governmental Relations, provides clients with 


valuable information on what is happening in the State Capitol regarding legislative and State 


Budget matters. Dave also shares his expertise in education funding as a consultant to several 


statewide education coalitions, providing detailed revenue analyses and funding projections for 


special education. Prior to joining SSC, Dave served in the legislative and constituent affairs office 


for the Secretary of State and represented the Secretary before policy committees. In addition, 


122 of 166







Mr. Patrick Gaffney   Page 5 
Santa Cruz City Schools—Food Services Operational Review  June 27, 2017 


 


 


while working in the Legislature, one of Dave’s major accomplishments was successfully working 


out various changes to the 2005 federal special education conformity bill (Assembly Bill 1662 


[Chapter 653/2005]). Dave is a graduate of California’s public school system and received his 


Bachelor of Arts degree from San Jose State University. 


Jamie Metcalf, Director, Management Consulting Services, has a wealth of experience in the 


areas of school finance, risk management, employment and personnel management, special 


education, and employee benefits. She has served in increasingly responsible human resource and 


fiscal positions. Prior to joining SSC, Jamie served as the Chief Business Official at Travis Unified 


School District and was responsible for all business and finance functions and served as a key 


member of the district’s cabinet. Jamie is a graduate of University of Phoenix with a degree in 


business administration and marketing. 


Matt Phillips, CPA, Director, Management Consulting Services, provides support to school 


districts in fiscal-related issues including budget reviews, salary schedule analyses, organizational 


reviews, and negotiations, including factfinding services. He also participates in workshops across 


the state on a variety of topics including the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 


advanced collective bargaining, district budgeting, and auditing. His background as a Certified 


Public Accountant, experience working in a school district, and completion of the California 


Association of School Business Officials (CASBO) Chief Business Official Certification program 


provide the foundation for these areas. Matt graduated from California State University, Chico, 


with a degree in business administration with emphasis in accounting.  


Charlene Quilao, Assistant Director, Management Consulting Services, provides extensive 


technical and professional services to local school agencies and community colleges to help them 


implement and maintain effective and efficient operations. As an integral member of our 


Management Consulting Services team, Charlene prepares research and data analysis in order to 


conduct organizational reviews, efficiency studies, comparative analyses of school district 


resources and staffing, statewide workshops, informative publications, and other client services. 


She also serves as SSC’s liaison to the State Board of Education, monitoring emerging education 


policy issues and providing this essential information to school districts. Charlene received her 


bachelor’s degree from San Francisco State University, focusing on social sciences and research 


and is an American Bar Association Certified Paralegal. 


Suzanne Speck, Vice President, provides support to school districts, county offices, and 


community college districts in governance, management, collective bargaining, employer-


employee relations, human resources, special education, and general consulting. Suzanne is 


responsible for leadership of SSC’s executive search services and brings a wealth of experience in 


the area of employment, personnel management, strategic planning, and organizational 


development. She served on the Fiscal Crisis & Management Assistance Team for human 


resources in South Monterey Joint Union High School District, Compton Community College 


District, and Inglewood Unified School District. Suzanne has served school districts in California 


for more than 20 years as a special education teacher, principal, and Assistant Superintendent, 


123 of 166







Mr. Patrick Gaffney   Page 6 
Santa Cruz City Schools—Food Services Operational Review  June 27, 2017 


 


 


Human Resources. Suzanne holds a Bachelor’s degree in Special Education and Early Childhood 


Education from Radford University, Radford, Virginia. She received two credentials and her 


Master’s degree in Education Administration from California State University, Sacramento. 


Kathleen Spencer, Director, Management Consulting Services, works with school districts, 


charter schools, county offices of education, and community colleges to implement effective and 


efficient operations through innovative strategies. She serves educational agencies in 


strengthening operations and resource management through organizational reviews, shared 


services and efficiency studies, budget reviews, comparative analyses of school district resources 


and staffing, total compensation studies, and facilities reviews. She specializes in the impacts of 


federal health care reform and the demands on employers to provide cost effective and legally 


compliant benefits. Kathleen also provides negotiations support to local educational agencies 


(LEA) and has prepared and presented many school district factfinding cases, resulting in positive 


and improved labor relations for both the LEA and employee group. Kathleen received her 


bachelor’s degree from California State University, Sacramento, focusing on social sciences and 


research. 


Sheila G. Vickers, Vice President, provides support to school districts, county offices, and 


community college districts in collective bargaining, legislative issues, human resources, 


information systems, executive search services, fiscal health analyses, and other management 


consulting services. She is a presenter at statewide workshops on school finance, collective 


bargaining, human resources, and employee benefits. She has served on Fiscal Crisis & 


Management Assistance Teams (FCMAT) for human resources and finance, and as a county-


appointed fiscal advisor for school districts in financial distress. For 11 years prior to joining SSC, 


Sheila served in various financial roles in both K-12 public school districts and community 


colleges. Sheila received her Master’s of Business Administration from California State 


University, Sacramento (CSUS), with emphasis on Management Information Systems. Her 


Bachelor of Science degree, also from CSUS, is in Business Administration with concentrations 


in Accounting and Management Information Systems. 


Cost of Project 


Our fee for this study is $TBD, plus actual and reasonable expenses. Expenses are defined as 


actual, out-of-pocket expenses, such as travel, meals, shipping, and duplication of materials. If 


meetings are required that are not described in this proposal (for example, a Board presentation), 


a charge of $250 per hour, per consultant will be billed in addition to actual and reasonable 


expenses. We will submit monthly billings for services associated with the project. 


After reviewing the proposal, if you decide the proposed scope should be expanded or contracted, 


we would be happy to make modifications and provide an estimated fee. If the proposal meets with 


your approval, please sign the enclosed Agreement for Special Services and return it to our office, 


whereupon a final executed Agreement will be returned for your records. Our proposal is valid for 


60 days from the date of this letter. 


124 of 166







Mr. Patrick Gaffney   Page 7 
Santa Cruz City Schools—Food Services Operational Review  June 27, 2017 


 


 


We appreciate the confidence you have in our firm and look forward to working with Santa Cruz 


City Schools on the upcoming project. 


Very truly yours, 


 


 


 


SHEILA G. VICKERS 


Vice President 


 


Enclosure 


125 of 166







 


 


Client # 22450 / S65W  P.O.#   


 


AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES 


Consultation Services 


This is an Agreement between SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS, hereinafter referred to as 


“Client,” and SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA, INC., hereinafter referred to as 


“Consultant,” entered into as of June 27, 2017. 


 RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the Client needs assistance regarding an operational review of the Food 


Services division; and 


WHEREAS, the Consultant is professionally and specially trained and competent to 


provide these services; and 


WHEREAS, the authority for entering into this Agreement is contained in Section 53060 


of the Government Code and such other provisions of California law as may be applicable; 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement do hereby mutually agree as follows: 


1. The Consultant agrees to assist the Client with an operational review of the Food 


Services division. 


2. The Client agrees to pay the Consultant $TBD, plus expenses, upon receipt of 


billing from Consultant.  


a. “Expenses” are defined as actual, out-of-pocket expenses, such as travel, 


meals, shipping, and duplication of materials.  


b. If additional meetings or presentations are required that are not described in 


our proposal (for example, a Board presentation), a charge of $250 per hour, 


per consultant will be billed in addition to actual and reasonable expenses. 


3. This Agreement shall be for the period commencing June 27, 2017, and terminating 


January 31, 2018. It may be terminated at any time prior to completion by either 


party on thirty (30) days’ written notice. In case of cancellation, the Client shall be 


liable for any costs accrued to date of cancellation. 


126 of 166







 


Santa Cruz City Schools—Operational Review of Food Services Page 2 


June 27, 2017 


 


 


 


4. It is expressly understood and agreed to by both parties that the Consultant, while 


carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 


is an independent contractor and is not an employee of the Client. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as 


indicated below: 


BY:   DATE:   


PATRICK GAFFNEY 


Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Santa Cruz City Schools  


 


 


 


BY:   DATE:   


SHEILA G. VICKERS  


Vice President 


School Services of California, Inc. 


127 of 166







County District Basic Aid LCFF ADA UPP(%)


Contribution to 
Fund 13           


(Object Code 89xx)
Contribution 


per ADA
Monterey ALISAL UNION ELEMENTARY N 8,828.68     91.41 -$                          
San Benito AROMAS/SAN JUAN UNIFIED N 1,106.62     66.49 -$                          
Santa Cruz BONNY DOON ELEMENTARY Y 158.13        22.59 -$                          
Monterey CARMEL UNIFIED Y 2,438.73     16.34 249,889$                 102.47$          
Santa Clara GILROY UNIFIED N 11,078.70   59.33 -$                          
Monterey GRAVES ELEMENTARY N 44.12          34.71 -$                          
Santa Cruz HAPPY VALLEY ELEMENTARY N 126.75        12.28 -$                          
Monterey LAGUNITA ELEMENTARY N 96.98          14.67 -$                          
Santa Clara LAKESIDE JOINT ELEMENTARY Y 85.79          19.10 -$                          
Santa Cruz LIVE OAK ELEMENTARY N 1,721.37     68.48 -$                          
Santa Clara LOMA PRIETA JOINT ELEMENTARY N 492.58        5.35 -$                          
Santa Clara LOS GATOS UNION ELEMENTARY Y 3,242.81     5.68 110,000$                 33.92$            
Santa Clara LOS GATOS-SARATOGA JOINT UNION Y 3,247.30     3.47 159,582$                 49.14$            
Monterey MONTEREY PENINSULA UNIFIED N 9,288.92     70.41 -$                          
Santa Clara MORGAN HILL UNIFIED N 8,148.03     43.58 -$                          
Santa Cruz MOUNTAIN ELEMENTARY N 118.89        9.92 -$                          
Monterey NORTH MONTEREY COUNTY UNIFIED N 4,335.30     83.60 -$                          
Santa Cruz PACIFIC ELEMENTARY N 110.11        35.26 19,017$                   172.71$          
Monterey PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED Y 2,004.20     22.86 33,558$                   16.74$            
Santa Cruz PAJARO VALLEY JOINT UNIFIED N 17,660.52   76.68 1,210$                      0.07$              
Monterey SALINAS CITY ELEMENTARY N 8,746.59     84.77 -$                          
Monterey SALINAS UNION HIGH N 14,489.98   71.73 -$                          
Santa Clara SAN JOSE UNIFIED N 29,678.35   47.05 -$                          
Santa Cruz SAN LORENZO VALLEY UNIFIED N 2,258.76     19.06 59,442$                   26.32$            
Santa Cruz SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS Y 6,504.24     42.82 150,000$                 23.06$            
Monterey SANTA RITA UNION ELEMENTARY N 3,417.21     77.59 -$                          
Santa Cruz SCOTTS VALLEY UNIFIED N 2,453.02     11.99 -$                          
Santa Cruz SOQUEL ELEMENTARY N 1,909.66     35.23 -$                          
Monterey SPRECKELS UNION ELEMENTARY N 943.33        16.67 52,371$                   55.52$            
Santa Clara UNION ELEMENTARY N 5,645.00     19.79 20,332$                   3.60$              
Monterey WASHINGTON UNION ELEMENTARY N 860.36        8.41 1,148$                      1.33$              


128 of 166







change order 2 Stronger Building Svces BV cover 


 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.8 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Change Orders for Construction Contract 


MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2017 


FROM:    Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #2 for Campus re-roofing at Bayview Elementary 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This project was started this summer and involves removal and replacement of existing flat 
roofing in all areas on the campus. The change order is for roof damage discovered after 
removal of existing roofing and to replace sections of sub framing that have rotted due to leaks 
over the years. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Original Contract: $517,000.00 
Change order #1            $51,107.74 
Change Order #2    $7,900.00 
Total                              $576,007.74 
 
This project is funded by Measure B Bond Funds 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metric: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


129 of 166







580 Harlan St. San Leandro Ca. 94577 
Tel: 510-487-8363        Fax: 510-487-8246 
  


                             08/25/2017 
 


 
 


 
                   
                                              COR no. 2 
 
Submitted By: Stronger Building Services 
Submitted To: Santa Cruz City Schools 
RE: Bay View Elementary School 
Atte: Trevor Miller/ Mark Bayog  
 
Scope of Work: 
  
To Remove the existing  Beams rotted at two different locations  
and replace them following the  details from the architect  
To remove the 2 window water table,trims and glass to replace the 
rotted wood and replace in kind (redwood) 
 
 
Total Add                                                                                                           $    7,900.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   Ismael Avila   
 
 PM Stronger Building Services  
    415)823-6355 
 
 


Stronger Building Services 
License # 955618     
 
Email: ismael@strongerbuilding.com 


130 of 166







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  PUBLIC HEARING: New Personnel Commissioner 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2017 
 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources 
 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
INFORMATION:   
The Board of Trustees of Santa Cruz City Schools must announce its intent to appoint Mrs. Pam 
Hernandez to the Personnel Commission for the term beginning October 1, 2017 and ending 
December 31, 2020.  A public hearing will follow this item on the agenda and a vote to appoint 
will be held on September 27, 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code 45245 specifies the responsibility for appointing Personnel Commissioners.  
One commissioner is appointed by the bargaining unit of the classified employees, one is 
appointed by the governing board and the third is appointed jointly by the other two 
members.    With the resignation of James Spano on June 6, 2017, a vacancy for the Board 
appointed member existed.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
District Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
District Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 


131 of 166







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve New Personnel Commissioner 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2017 
 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources 
 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the appointment of Mrs. Pam Hernandez to the 
Personnel Commission as the Board appointed member. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code 45245 specifies the responsibility for appointing Personnel Commissioners.  
One commissioner is appointed by the bargaining unit of the classified employees, one is 
appointed by the governing board and the third is appointed jointly by the other two 
members.    Education Code 45246(d) specifies that the governing board’s appointment must 
be approved at a board meeting held between 30 and 45 days following a public hearing on the 
matter.  A public hearing was held at the regularly scheduled board meeting on September 27, 
2017. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
District Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
District Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 


132 of 166







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM: LCAP Local Indicators 
 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


BACKGROUND: 


The LCAP Local Indicators address four of the eight State Priorities.  Each district is required to 


report on these areas annually to the Board.  


1) Priority 1: Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to curriculum-Aligned Instructional 


Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities. 


2) Priority 2: Local Education Agency (LEA) annually measures its progress implementing state 


academic standards. 


3) Priority 3: LEA annually measures its progress in (1) seeking input from parents in decision 


making and (2) promoting parental participation in programs. 


4) Priority 6: LEA administers a local climate survey at least every other year that provides a 


valid measure of perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such as the California 


Healthy Kids Survey, to students in at least one grade within the grade span(s) that the LEA 


serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12). 


Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) appropriately assigns teachers to their credentialed subject 
area(s), provides student access to curriculum-aligned instructional materials, and continues to 
aim to provide safe, clean and functional school facilities. We use the Williams’ process and 
data to determine the efficacy of our practices and make informed decisions based on current 
data. 
 
SCCS developed a Curriculum Master Plan in 2016-17, and we will finalize the plan and timeline 
this school year. We are using this document to help guide and monitor our implementation of 
the California Common Core State Standards (CCSS) as well as our instructional Tier 1 focus. We 
chose this tool to measure our progress because we wanted a locally developed tool that met 
our specific and unique needs. Because we created this tool, it directly applies to our areas of 
need and identifies and lays out a plan for meeting these needs. The following is an assessment 
of SCCS’s implementation of the CCSS in each content standard area. 
 
English Language Arts: Both at the elementary and middle school levels, teachers have 
Common Core aligned lessons and Scope and Sequences. Our elementary schools are beginning 
a textbook adoption pilot this school year using Benchmark, a Common Core aligned 
curriculum. Teachers are engaging in PD to support the successful pilot of this curriculum, and 
at the end of the school year, we will determine if we will move forward with a full 
implementation of this curriculum or others explored this year. At the secondary level, the 


133 of 166







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.3 


middle schools have dedicated a .2 coach through LCFF to support alignment.  High School PLCs 
have worked on aligning curriculum standards at each site. This year, we are beginning to set a 
common curriculum and map it to the CCSS in our high schools districtwide. We anticipate this 
taking two years to complete. 
 
English Language Development: All ELD teachers have received PD regarding the ELD standards 
and have implemented these into their instruction. All schools in our district have agreed to 
focus on moving toward an Integrated ELD approach over the next 5 years, meaning ELD 
standards, instructional strategies, and scaffolds and supports are used in all content areas by 
all teachers throughout the school. We are in the beginning stages of PD and implementation 
regarding Integrated ELD. 
 
Mathematics: Elementary schools are in year two of implementing Eureka Math, a new 
common core aligned mathematics program. Both middle schools are in year 5 of implementing 
the CCSS through the College Preparatory Math Curriculum.  Our high schools are in year two of 
a three-year implementation to shift from the traditional math sequence to an integrated 
common core sequence of math courses.  
 
Mathematics: SCCS middle schools are in year five of CPM aligned CCSS curriculum and 
instruction. Last year both elementary and high school adopted CCSS aligned curriculum and 
engaged in PD to support the CCSS. This year elementary and high school are both continuing 
their implementation and PD to support it.  
 
Next Generation Science Standards: We are in year three of a three-year NGSS implementation 
plan. We have established lead science teachers at each elementary, middle, and high schools. 
These leads have been to many NGSS trainings and meet monthly to deepen their 
understanding and implementation of NGSS. These leads are supporting the implementation of 
NGSS at each of their respective sites. We aim to have fully aligned all science teachers’ 
curriculum and instruction to the NGSS within the next 3-5 years. 
 
History-Social Science: We have done some PD to support the implementation of the CA 
Content Literacy Standards in history. As the new History standards were just adopted, this will 
be an area of focus over the next 3-5 years. 
 
Career Technical Education: CTE teachers and classes are aligned to the outlined state 
descriptions and teachers are working to incorporate the necessary Leadership standards. We 
are building as many CTE pathways as funds and instructors allow.  
 
Health Education, Physical Education, Visual and Performing Arts, and World Language: 
Standards are followed in each of their respective courses.  
 
We administer a local climate survey at least every other year that provides a valid measure of 
perceptions of school safety and connectedness, and it provides a valid measure of students in 
at least one grade within the grade spans that the LEA serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12). 
 
  


134 of 166







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.3 


Fiscal Impact:  The full fiscal impact of the Curriculum Master Plan is still being developed.  It 
includes curriculum, professional development and technology costs.  We will report this when 
we bring the next draft for Board review.   The Healthy Kids Survey is administered through and 
paid for by the County Office of Education. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:   SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #4:   We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 
Goal #6:   SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 


community. 
 


135 of 166







13
6 


of
 1


66







13
7 


of
 1


66







13
8 


of
 1


66







13
9 


of
 1


66







14
0 


of
 1


66







14
1 


of
 1


66







                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


Agenda Item:   Assessment and Progress Monitoring Tools 
      
Meeting Date:   September 27, 2017 
 
From:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
Through:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
Background: 
At SCCS we are using the Response to Intervention (RtI) framework to provide a systematic 
approach for meeting every child’s needs (academically as well as the social-emotional). As part 
of the RtI framework it is essential that we have universal screeners for both math and English. 
A universal screener is an assessment given to all students for the purpose of providing an 
objective check or measure of each student’s level of learning. In addition, it is also essential 
that we have objective and valid progress monitoring tools as a means for measuring student 
growth and progress throughout the year. 
 
Our district has been using the Scholastic Reading Inventory (SRI) and the Scholastic 
Mathematics Inventory (SMI) for the past several years, and while these assessments served as 
a good universal screening tool, they did not work as well for progress monitoring because the 
data received from these assessments is very limited and not useful for teachers in helping 
them know how to modify instruction to best meet their students needs. In addition, SRI/SMI 
was also bought by a different vendor and this new vendor was not providing adequate 
technical support to continue to use their product. Because SRI and SMI were so limited 
coupled with the other issues that were arising with the new vendor, RtI Coordinators began to 
search for other, better assessment tool that could serve as both our universal screener and 
progress monitoring tool.  
 
During this search, the Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measure of Academic 
Progress (MAP) Growth assessments were found to be used by many RtI districts across the 
nation. We also found that many local districts were using MAP: Live Oak, Soquel, & Pajaro.  
Last school year, Harbor High RtI Coordinator Mike Lynch piloted the MAP Growth assessments 
in Harbor’s Integrated Science classes and found the MAP Growth assessments to have the 
qualities we were looking for in a universal screener and progress monitoring tool. This 
information was brought to administrators and site SCIL teams in May 2017, and it was decided 
to move forward with implementing MAP for the 2017-18 school year. The MAP Growth 
assessments have thus replaced the SRI and SMI, and will be given three times during the 
school year (beginning, middle, and end) in third through 10th grade. 
 


142 of 166







                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


The primary counterpart to MAP is the CPAA - Childrens’ Progress Academic Assessment. The 
CPAA is shorter and more primary oriented assessment that will measure growth over the year. 
The CPAA is to be given 3 times a year in grades K through 2.  
 
MAP Growth Assessment System: 


● Targeted Students -  
○ Kindergarten - 2nd Grade are taking the NWEA Children’s Progress Academic 


Assessment (CPAA) 
○ 3rd - 9th Grades are taking the MAP Growth Assessments in Reading and Math  
○ 10th Grade also taking MAP Growth in Math (Integrated 2) 
○ MAP Growth Science is optional for middle and high school 


 
● Number of students served = 5,008 


 
● CPAA/MAP Purpose and Goals 


○ Provide schools with a universal screener as well as a progress monitoring 


nationally norm referenced tool for determining their students’ current skills and 


areas of readiness to learn new skills. 


○ Provide valuable and meaningful data that teachers can immediately use to help 


inform instruction to meet specific areas of student need. 


○ Empower students to set clear and purposeful goals based on data to track their 


growth and progress. 


○ Give teachers, schools, and the district data points on the effectiveness of Tier 1 


instructional practices providing all our students with foundational skills prior to 


intervention. 


 


● MAP Strengths 
○ The type of actionable, accurate data about each student and class that a 


teacher will get from MAP has great potential to impact instruction, as well as 
impact each student’s ability to better understand their own level of learning 
and make realistic goals for growth. 


○ MAP Growth assessments not only assess Math and Reading, but they also 
assess Language and Science. 


○ MAP Growth assessments are also available in Spanish, which means our 
Newcomers would be able to access them. 


○ MAP Growth provides many different data report types specifically for the 
district, teacher, and student/parent.   


○ MAP Growth assessments also align with the Common Core State Standards 
(CCSS) and have a report that predicts CAASPP scores. In speaking with other 
local districts using MAP, they say the CAASPP predictions are incredibly 
accurate. 


143 of 166







                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


 
● MAP Successes  


○ All schools (elementary, middle, and high) have begun CPAA/MAP testing and 
the majority of students have completed their first test. 


 
● Areas of Needed Improvement 


○ Internet bandwidth is not quite what we need it to be, which is causing 
Chromebooks to slow and only one class to be taking the assessments at a time. 
In addition, more Internet access points at sites are needed. 


○ On site tech support is desired because of the number of technology issues that 
arise when testing. 


○ The MAP Growth assessments are taking much longer to complete than we 
anticipated, which has caused teachers to give up more class time than 
anticipated to take the test. It is taking longer than anticipated in part due to 
technology and internet issues, but also because we are told by MAP that the 
initial test takes longer for students as the computer adjusts to their level of 
learning. 


○ On-going training for all teachers & PLCs to access the reports and know how to 
use them is needed for the MAP to be used to its fullest potential. 


 
● Process for Choosing MAP Growth --  


Because SRI and SMI were so limited in the type of information they provided, coupled 
with the other issues that were arising due to the new owner of SRI and SMI, RtI 
Coordinators began to search for other, better assessment tools that could serve as 
both our universal screener and progress monitoring tool.  
 
During this search, the Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measure of Academic 
Progress (MAP) Growth assessments were found to be used by many RtI districts across 
the nation. We also found that many local districts were using MAP: Live Oak, Soquel, & 
Pajaro. 
 
Last school year, Harbor High RtI Coordinator Mike Lynch piloted the MAP Growth 
assessments in Harbor’s Integrated Science classes and found the MAP Growth 
assessments to have the qualities we were looking for in a universal screener and 
progress monitoring tool. This information was brought to administrators and site SCIL 
teams in May 2017, and it was decided to move forward with implementing MAP for the 
2017-18 school year. The MAP Growth assessments have thus replaced the SRI and SMI, 
and will be given three times during the school year (beginning, middle, and end). CPAA 
was chosen to measure growth in K-2, as it is available in both Spanish and English and is 
a shorter, more accessible assessment designed to measure growth in our youngest 
students.   
 
 


144 of 166







                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


● Evaluation criteria -  
○ We are developing the process for evaluating CPAA and MAP. We will use the 


student growth data collected from MAP as well as get teacher and RtI 
Coordinator input.  


○ We will know MAP is successful if teachers are using it to inform instruction and 
students’ increase their growth in reading and math as measured by MAP.  


○ Because MAP is new, we will be revisiting its implementation and its 
effectiveness throughout this school year as well as throughout 2018-19. Ideally 
we would like to actively refine our testing process as well as our processes for 
analyzing and acting upon the MAP Growth data to impact student learning over 
the next 3 years before we make a final determination regarding MAP’s 
effectiveness, assuming that there are no major issues or reasons for continuing 
with MAP. 


 
● Data from MAP 


○ Once we finish our initial testing, we will have baseline data. We should have this 
within the next 3 weeks. 


 
Fiscal Impact: 
 


CPAA = $14,850 
MAP English & Math = $53,595 


MAP Science = $6,000 
CPAA/MAP Training = $10,000 


Total = $84,445 
 
Funding Source: General Funds 
 
District Goals: 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


145 of 166







Professional Growth Summary Report 2016-17 


Project Title: MAP – A Tool to Set and Measure Student Progress Goals 


Employee: Mike Lynch 


Introduction 


This year MAP was a new assessment tool the integrated science team piloted.  This computer adaptive test measures 


not only student proficiency in four major areas of science, but also how a student improves over time.  MAP has a 


variety of tools available to teachers but the most interesting to me was the “Student Goal Setting Worksheet”.  As a 


part of implementation, I wanted to see if having students set progress goals and regularly reflect on them would 


increase their performance on the MAP test compared to students who did not do regular reflection.  I also was curious 


if there would be any significant difference between the ways in which students attempted to reach their goals, what I 


call an “Action Step”.  This report will describe how the project was completed, analysis of the data collected, general 


impressions of MAP and goal setting informed from case study students and classroom teachers, and next steps for 


implementing MAP in our science classrooms. 


The Project 


Our team was planning on giving the MAP test 3 times this year: fall, winter and spring.  This project was simply a closer 


look at the work we were already planning on doing.  The students of two integrated teachers cooperating with me 


would serve as an experimental group and a control.  One group of students would regularly reflect on the goals they 


had set for themselves throughout the year, while the other group would not.  Below is the timeline I followed for 


collecting MAP data from all students, as well as reflection data from my experimental group of reflecting students. 


What follows is a description of each part of the study. 


MAP Testing 


Testing takes from 30-60 minutes if students are taking the test seriously.  That means a block has to be scheduled for 


the test.  The platform is pretty easy to learn, but some lessons online before the first test really helps when you have a 


class full of students.  Teachers planned their 100 minute block periods to include some sort of reflection-type opening 


question for students to ponder, as well as a reminder of what the MAP test measures, before they began their tests.  


These lessons need to have some independent activity for students to complete once their test is over as students will 


finish at different times.  For some students the single block period is not enough time to finish the test.  This year we 


did not require students to come in at other times to finish.  This would be something departments would want to 


consider if MAP scores will be tied to any sort of intervention or grade component.  It resulted in some missing MAP 


scores this year for our integrated science students.  Our team did not feel that the benefit of those scores would 


outweigh the cost of those students missing class to take the test.  After the test session is complete it takes 24 hours for 


scores to become available to students and teachers. 


FALL 2016 WINTER 2017 SPRING 2016 


MAP Testing – All Students 


Progress Monitoring and Goal Setting – All Students


Student Reflection on progress toward goals – Experimental Group Only 


146 of 166







Progress Monitoring and Goal Setting  


Once students from all sections of integrated science completed their test I printed out “Student Goal Setting 


Worksheets” for each of them.  The top half of the latest set printed in May look like this: 


 


Figure 1 Student Goal Setting Worksheet (top half) 


This worksheet highlights:  


 The student’s achievement on the test (the RIT score) from current and prior tests (FA16, WI17, SP17) 


 Their areas of relative strength (in green) and areas of concern (in yellow) 


 A prediction of their growth for the school year (dotted line) across bar graph 


 A space to generate growth goals in terms of RIT  


 A place to record an action plan for accomplishing their goal 


Students were asked to consider their predicted growth in the fall and decide if they were happy with average growth 


(the prediction) or wanted to shoot a bit higher this year.  This was recorded on the space near “My Goal” (bottom left).  


Students were then asked to pick from a prepopulated list of “Action Steps” for their student action plan.  The options 


included: study an extra hour a week for science, complete 90% of coursework, spend one afternoon a week in the 


learning center, develop flash cards for each unit, or develop a behavior plan with the teacher.  Students were limited to 


these options for data collection purposes.  Worksheets were then collected and signed by myself if students had 


completed their worksheet.  I recorded their action step digitally and passed them back so they could be kept at the 


front of their binders. 


This process was repeated after winter testing in January.  Before setting goals for the spring, I quickly tabulated average 


RIT growth based on the action step that students selected so students could make an informed decision about which 


step they would choose for the second semester.   


Student Reflection on Progress toward Goal 


Once every two weeks I visited the experimental integrated science class at the end of the period to help them reflect 


on their progress toward meeting their MAP goal.  I passed out quarter sheets (figure 2) that asked students to self-


assess their effort towards meeting the goal they had set for themselves.  I instructed students to revisit their Goal 


147 of 166







Setting worksheet in their binders to remind them of the action step they said they would take in order to achieve their 


goal.   


 


Figure 2 Student Reflection Slip 


During the first semester I noticed that student’s explanations for rating their effort was haphazard at best.  Many 


students didn’t mention their action step in their explanation – simply that they felt like they were trying hard… or not.  


With this in mind, at our winter progress monitoring meeting I gave students logs (figure 3) to attach to their Goal 


Setting Worksheet that would help them keep track of their effort.   


 


Figure 3 Study Log Example 


148 of 166







The example study log is pretty representative of most students.  You’ll notice sporadic entries.  Some logs were 


untouched.  Some students needed a second log - like Isaiah.  For students like him it resulted in much more evidenced 


based reflections week to week.  Figure 4 shows the types of reflections he would give before logging his effort in 


November and the much more specific reflections he would give in the spring.   


 


 


Figure 4 Reflections before and after implementing study logs 


I continued visiting integrated classes until the end of May, collecting student slips and tabulating their reflection scores.  


Below is a sample of the type of data I kept digitally in addition to the collection of slips. 


 


At the end of May we did our last round of testing and concluded the project. 


Data Analysis 


After all of this reflection with students I wanted to know if it really made a difference in their learning.  To investigate 


this I compared the Average RIT Growth (how much a student’s score increased since the last test) of several different 


groups of students.  The information I have collected is not particularly conducive to statistical analysis.  First, I have a 


very small sample size – 84 students total between all sections of integrated science.  Second, the RIT is measured 


objectively, while the reflection scores are student generated. Despite my best efforts to have students ground their 


Figure 5 Record Keeping 


149 of 166







reflection score in evidence (study logs), I fear many students didn’t put much thought into their reflections.  As such we 


shouldn’t hastily make conclusions based on the data presented in this report.  The summary of my analysis follows. 


Effect of Regular Reflection on RIT Growth 


This data is simply a comparison between my two groups in the study – those who reflected on their effort every other 


week and those who did not.  


 


Figure 6 Effect of Regular Reflection on RIT Growth 


My experimental variable (reflecting on action step goals) did not have a statistically significant effect on MAP outcomes 


as evidenced by the enormous standard deviations within groups.  Some students saw tremendous growth between 


testing sessions – the highest being 14 points – while others saw backsliding in equal amounts.  While regularly 


reflecting on MAP goals might not be the key to student success – this data implies that sound science teaching does, in 


fact, improve student outcomes.  We see here growth between both groups of about 2 points in each half of the year.  


That means on average students in integrated science improved by 4 RIT points – above the national norm.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


150 of 166







Effect of Action Steps on RIT Growth  


This data compares the growth of two groups with large enough sample sizes to compare – the students who chose to 


study 1 hour extra a week and those who chose to complete 90% of their coursework. 


 


Figure 7 Effect of Action Steps on RIT Growth 


Action steps were chosen by all students in integrated science.  I wanted to see if simply choosing one step over another 


had an effect on MAP test outcomes.  It did not.  While the averages between the two groups in the winter might 


suggest a difference, the amount of variance within the group shows there is no statistical difference between the action 


steps.  This pattern is repeated in the spring. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


151 of 166







Effect of High Reflection Marks on RIT Growth 


This data looks at how well students who gave themselves high reflection scores did on the MAP test compared to those 


who scored themselves low. 


 


Figure 8 Effect of High Reflection Marks on RIT Growth 


This group only included students from the experimental group (those that reflected regularly) and only looked at data 


from the second semester – after students were given a more structured way of giving themselves reflection scores – so 


the sample size is small (35).  


Again, while the average growth between the groups would suggest that reflection scores bears on the outcome on the 


MAP test, the wild variance between members of a group shows us that there is no statistically significant difference 


between these two averages. 


Conclusions  


The objective, scientific conclusion to my study is that making goals and reflecting on your progress towards them has 


little to no significant impact on a student’s success on a standardized science test.   


With that said I wholeheartedly endorse this practice in my fellow teachers’ classrooms.  


Averages don’t tell the whole story here.  Most students did not take their action step very seriously.  Some however, 


like Isaiah did.  If students like him did not show improvement then I would redact my endorsement. Here is Isaiah’s 


snapshot for the year from figure 1: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


152 of 166







Isaiah grew 5 RIT points this year – well over the national norm.  On top of that it would appear that all of his logging 


paid off in the spring, where 4 of his 5 points of growth were made.  These are the moments teachers hope to celebrate 


with their students – and this practice allows for that in a meaningful, data driven way – at least with some students. 


The analytical data I collected can’t bring to bear what teachers see in their student’s attitudes about adopting a growth 


mindset.  We’ve talked a lot at Harbor about how to foster grit and resiliency in our students – I think this practice puts 


into action the teachings of Dweck and others.   


One of the cooperating teachers this year commented how this test and specifically the goal setting worksheet allowed 


students to keep track of their progress on the test and see how they improved over time.  Another teacher commented 


on the positive attitude students had about the test, noting that it wasn’t about reaching a particular score, simply 


showing personal improvement. 


Next Steps 


NWEA, the creators of MAP, host informative webinars highlighting how some districts use MAP.  This year I learned of a 


school district that sets MAP goals with students individually based on their RIT achievement score.  Those goals would 


be different for students at different achievement levels.  I think this is a great next step for our teachers to take.  It 


makes the goal setting process more directed and individualized.  The action steps could be unique for each student as 


well, or group of ability-like students. 


Our team is interested in making better use of the data provided by MAP as well.  This year was a successful pilot in that 


we became familiar with the platform and the data it provides. We now want to make instructional decisions based on 


what we see.  What level groups do we have in class?  How can we use that to make better groups or differentiate 


instruction?  


The great improvement of some students according to MAP also begs the question – how did they do in class?  Do 


students who score highly or make great progress have high marks in their class as well?  Next year will be a good time 


for our team to have these discussions about how grades might reflect improvement.  MAP could play a role in that. 


153 of 166







15
4 


of
 1


66







15
5 


of
 1


66







15
6 


of
 1


66







15
7 


of
 1


66







15
8 


of
 1


66







15
9 


of
 1


66







16
0 


of
 1


66







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report: Update on Measures A and B Bond Projects 
 


MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


BACKGROUND: 
Staff will present an update on the status of current Measures A and B Bond Projects. 


 


 


    FISCAL IMPACT: 
    The fiscal impact of the projects will be determined after bids are received and evaluated. 
 
 
 


This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Bond Projects Update cover  
AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5 


161 of 166







BOND PROCESS UPDATE


September 27, 2017


162 of 166







Each site has had at least two meetings with 


some having had four meetings with their 


Architectural team to develop a site Master 


Plan. With school back in session these 


meetings will continue and serve to inform 


the definition of projects and phasing, 


keeping budget in mind.


163 of 166







Pool Update:  Analyzing Key Cost Differences of 


Each Pool Type – Myrtha and Concrete
 Analyzed Means and Methods


 Subcontractor Input and Expertise Collected


 Reviewed Schedule Impact


 Myrtha Stainless Steel Additional Installation Costs


– Additional Cost for Pool - $565,200


– Additional Excavation and backfill - $268,395


– Additional Concrete - $251,200


Proceeding with 40M Concrete Pools 164 of 166







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.6 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Opening of Sunshine Period for Santa Cruz City Schools to the 


Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers K-12 Unit for the 2017-
18 School Year 


 
DATE:    September 27, 2017 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
To approve the Santa Cruz City Schools’, 2017-18 contract proposals to Greater Santa Cruz 
Federation of Teachers’ K-12 Unit for sunshining. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz City Schools’ contract proposals are being submitted for sunshining at the 
September 27, 2017 Board Meeting.  This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for 
public notice of contract proposals before official negotiations may begin.  
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Undetermined at this time. 
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
District Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
District Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


165 of 166







Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, Deedee Perez-Granados, Jeremy Shonick, Patricia Threet, Deb Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


 


 


 


 


 


405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, California 95073  |  (831) 429-3410  |  www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us  


   Kris Munro                  Molly Parks           Patrick Gaffney         Frank Wells 


Superintendent of           Assistant Superintendent    Assistant Superintendent               Assistant Superintendent 


     Schools               Human Resources         Business Services    Educational Services 


     


 


 


   


2017-18 Bargaining Proposal 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 


 
The Santa Cruz City Schools proposes to open on the following articles for negotiations with the Greater Santa 


Cruz Federation of Teachers’, K-12 Unit: 
 
 


 


   Article XIV  Evaluation Procedure 


   Side Letter  Excel Schedule for Santa Cruz High School  


Side Letter  Comprehensive Elementary Sites – Restructured  


    Wednesdays 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6 


166 of 166





		Agenda 9-27-17 Final

		Minutes 9-13-17 Reviewed

		Minutes 9-19-17 Reviewed

		Cover - Item 8.1.1- Certificated Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.1- Certificated Personnel Actions

		Cover - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions

		POs Quotes & Bids cover

		POs over $2500 List

		PO/REQ

		Enviroplex Quote RR Snackbar at HH cover

		Quote Enviroplex Restroom & Snack Bar Bldg Harbor High

		Vendor Warrants cover

		Vendor Warrants List

		Budget Transfers August cover

		Budget Transfer Report August 2017

		Cvr Gifts 9.27.17

		contracts cover

		Cvr CSA.SS.UCSC.Ca.Writing.Program

		CSA.SS.UCSC.Ca.Writing.Program

		CSA Organized Binder HH cover

		CSA Organized Binder HH

		Maria Ballard - revised Agrmt for Prof Sv cover

		Maria Ballard - revised Agrmt for Prof Sv

		Wasinger Inspection Svces contract SHS marquee cover

		Wasinger Inspection  Svces contract Soquel HS Marquee Sign

		Wenger & Assoc Agrmt re ASB training cover

		Wenger & Associates proposal ASB_Fundraisers_

		A-Z Bus Sales Lease Rental Agrmt cover

		A-Z Bus Sales Lease Rental Agrmt 2 buses

		No American  Tech inspection svc Ad Ed portable cover

		No American  Technical Svces agrmt inplant inspection of portable for AE

		Bay Alarm Agrmt security patrol NB cover

		Bay Alarm Agrmt security svces at NB

		School Sv of CA agrmt - Food Sv study cover

		School Sv of CA agrmt - Food Sv study

		Comparative Data Food Sv

		For SCCS Use

		change order 2 Stronger Building Svces BV cover

		Change Order #2 Stronger Building

		Cover - Item 8.3.1 - Public Hearing-New Personnel Commissioner

		Cover - Item 8.3.2 -Approve New Personnel Commissioner

		LCAP Board Cover

		LCAP Local Indicators2.Final

		Cvr Assessment & Progress Monitoring Tools

		Professional Growth Summary Report 2016

		Assessment & Progress2

		Cvr Bond Projects Update.rev.KM

		Sept 2017 Projects and SCCS Soquel Pool Analysis Final

		Cover - Item 8.3.6 - Sunshine SCCS to GSCFT

		Attachment - Item 8.3.6SCCS Sunshine to GSCFT








